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Independent Auditors’ Report 

To the Board of Trustees of 
Bridge Preparatory Charter School 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bridge Preparatory Charter School (the
“School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the School as of June 30, 2022, and the changes in net assets and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the School and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability 
to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available
to be issued. 



 
 

  
    

   
  

 
  

     
  

  
 

   

 

   
    

   
  

    
  

   
 

   
    

 

       
      

  

 
    

 

 

       
     

    
 

 

 
 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the School’s 2021 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified
audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 4, 2021. In our opinion,
the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, 
is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 6,
2022, on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Schall & Ashenfarb 
Certified Public Accountants, LLC 

October 6, 2022 
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BRIDGE PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AT JUNE 30, 2022 
(With comparative totals at June 30, 2021) 

6/30/22 6/30/21 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Government grant receivable - per pupil funding (Note 3) 
Government grants receivable - other 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Restricted cash (Note 4) 
Fixed assets, net (Note 5) 

$4,063,147 
76,612 

135,598 
0 

75,420 
157,171 

$2,307,106 
0 

38,214 
80,387 
60,243 

204,138 

Total assets $4,507,948 $2,690,088 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Liabilities:
  Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
  Government grant advance - per pupil funding (Note 3) 

$356,978 
0 

$280,229
119,108

      Total liabilities 356,978 399,337 

Net assets - without donor restrictions 4,150,970 2,290,751 

Total liabilities and net assets $4,507,948 $2,690,088 

The attached notes and auditors' report are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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BRIDGE PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
(With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2021) 

6/30/22 6/30/21* 

Without donor restrictions: 
Public support and revenue:
  Public school district revenue: (Note 3)
    Resident student enrollment $3,263,390 $2,386,204
    Students with special education services 2,062,822 1,582,925
  Subtotal public school district revenue 
  Government grant - Paycheck 
      Protection Program (Note 6) 
  Other government  grants 
  Contributions 

5,326,212 

0 
298,023 

32,347 

3,969,129

136,000
105,831

5,000
  In-kind contribution (Note 2g) 
  Other income 

450,000 
13,801 

450,000
3,352 

Total public support and revenue 6,120,383 4,669,312 

Expenses:
  Program services:
    Regular education 
    Special education 

1,311,223 
2,186,818 

959,279
1,678,686

  Total program services 
 Supporting services - management and general 

3,498,041 
762,123 

2,637,965
470,276 

Total expenses 4,260,164 3,108,241 

Change in net assets 1,860,219 1,561,071 

Net assets - beginning of year 2,290,751 729,680 

Net assets - end of year $4,150,970 $2,290,751 

* Restated - See Note 2g 

The attached notes and auditors' report are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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BRIDGE PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
(With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2021) 

Program Services 
Total 

Regular Special Program 
Education Education Services 

Supporting 
Services 

Management 
and 

General 

Total 
Expenses 
6/30/22 

Total 
Expenses 
6/30/21* 

Salaries 
Payroll taxes and benefits 

$797,632 
159,614 

$1,274,946 
255,129 

$2,072,578 
414,743 

$347,353 
69,509 

$2,419,931 
484,252 

$1,679,686 
347,844 

Total personnel costs 957,246 1,530,075 2,487,321 416,862 2,904,183 2,027,530 

Professional fees 
Professional development 
Student and staff recruitment 
Curriculum and
  classroom expenses 
Supplies and materials 
Office expenses 
Insurance 
IT and communications 
In-kind occupancy
    and facility costs (Note 2g) 
Non-capitalized equipment
  and furnishings 
Other expenses 
Bad debt 
Depreciation 

65,637 
458 

34,662 
4,086 

42,084 
14,963 

8,094 

148,324 

248 
1,836 

33,585 

105,317 
732 

145,345 
6,531 

67,267 
23,917 
12,937 

237,083 

395 
3,537 

53,682 

0 
170,954 

1,190 

180,007 
10,617 

109,351 
38,880 
21,031 

385,407 

643 
5,373 

0 
87,267 

193,597 
28,049 

7,490 

1,779 
18,326 

6,516 
3,524 

64,593 

108 
6,653 

14,626 

193,597 
199,003 

8,680 

180,007 
12,396 

127,677 
45,396 
24,555 

450,000 

751 
12,026 

0 
101,893 

144,642 
167,873 

24,633 

93,254 
42,330 
22,582 
28,039 
27,319 

450,000 

6,257 
3,809 
6,285 

63,688 

Total other than personnel costs 353,977 656,743 1,010,720 345,261 1,355,981 1,080,711 

Total expenses $1,311,223 $2,186,818 $3,498,041 $762,123 $4,260,164 $3,108,241 

* Restated - See Note 2g 

The attached notes and auditors' report are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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BRIDGE PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
(With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2021) 

6/30/22 6/30/21 

Cash flows from operating activities:
    Change in net assets $1,860,219 $1,561,071
    Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
      to net cash provided by operating activities:
        Depreciation 101,893 63,688
        Changes in assets and liabilities:
            Government grant receivable/advance - per pupil funding (195,720) 130,241
            Government grants receivable - other (97,384) 210,836
            Prepaid expense and other assets 80,387 (80,387)
            Accounts payable and accrued expenses 76,749 8,142
            Paycheck Protection Program loan 0 (136,000)
    Total adjustments (34,075) 196,520

  Net cash provided by operating activities 1,826,144 1,757,591 

Cash flows from investing activities:
    Purchases of furniture and fixtures (54,926) (119,316) 
Net cash used for investing activities (54,926) (119,316) 

Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 1,771,218 1,638,275 

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash - beginning of year 2,367,349 729,074 

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash - end of year $4,138,567 $2,367,349 

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash:
   Cash and cash equivalents 
   Restricted cash 

$4,063,147 
75,420 

$2,307,106
60,243 

$4,138,567 $2,367,349 

No taxes or interest were paid. 

The attached notes and auditors' report are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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BRIDGE PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 

Note 1 - Organization and Nature of Activities 

Bridge Preparatory Charter School (the “School”), located in Staten Island, New York, is a 
not-for-profit education corporation chartered by the Board of Regents of the State of New 
York, for and on behalf of the State Education Department.  In August 2019, the School was
granted a provisional charter for a term up to and including June 2024. The School is
specifically designed to meet the needs of students struggling with literacy, specifically
those students with dyslexia or other language-based learning needs. The School ensures 
that students gain the skills and confidence to meet their full academic potential and the
School’s innovative and rigorous student-centered environment develops students to be
confident, creative, life-long learners. The School completed the 2021-2022 fiscal year with
an average enrollment of approximately 190 students. The School is a publicly funded,
privately managed school, which is independent of the New York City Department of
Education (“NYCDOE”). 

The School has the following programs: 

Regular Education – Instruction provided to all students. 
Special Education – Instruction that is specially designed to meet the unique
needs of students with disabilities. 

The School has been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from federal 
income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no
provision for income taxes has been reflected in the accompanying financial statements.
They have not been designated as a private foundation. 

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies 

a. Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting,
which is the process of recognizing revenue and expenses when earned or incurred 
rather than received or paid. 

b. Basis of Presentation 
The School reports information regarding their financial position and activities 
according to the following classes of net assets: 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions – represents those resources for which
there are no restrictions by donors as to their use. 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions – represents those resources, the uses of
which have been restricted by donors for a specific purpose or the passage of 
time. There were no net assets with donor restrictions at June 30, 2022 or June
30, 2021.  
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c. Revenue Recognition
The School follows the requirements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s 
(“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 968-605 for recording
contributions, which are recognized at the earlier of when cash is received or at the 
time a pledge becomes unconditional in nature. Contributions are recorded in the net
asset classes referred to above depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-
imposed restriction. 

When a restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends, or purpose
restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net
assets without donor restrictions. If donor restricted contributions are satisfied in the 
same period they were received, they are classified as without donor restrictions. 

Contributions may be subject to conditions which are defined as both a barrier to
entitlement and a right of return or release from obligations and are recognized as
income once conditions have been substantially met. Conditional pledges that have not
been recognized amounted to $220,000 at June 30, 2022. The pledges are conditional
upon achieving certain performance goals and incurring qualifying expenditures. 

The School’s public-school district revenue and other government grants are primarily
conditional, non-exchange transactions, and fall under FASB ASC 958-605. Revenue
from these transactions is recognized based on rates established by the School’s 
funding sources and when performance related outcomes are achieved, or qualifying
expenditures are incurred, as well as other conditions under the agreements are met. 

Contributions and grants expected to be received within one year are recorded at net 
realizable value. Long-term pledges are recorded at fair value using a risk adjusted
discounted rate. Pledges are reviewed for collectability. Based on knowledge of specific
donors and factoring in historical experience, no allowance for doubtful accounts exists
as of June 30, 2022 or June 30, 2021. Write-offs will be made directly to operations in
the period the receivable is deemed to be uncollectable. Conditional contributions are 
recognized as income when the conditions have been substantially met. 

d. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Checking and money market accounts with local banks and highly liquid debt
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less are considered to be
cash and cash equivalents for purposes of the accompanying statement of cash flows.
Cash maintained in escrow per requirements of the NYCDOE are treated as restricted
cash. 

e. Concentration of Credit Risk 
Financial instruments which potentially subject the School to a concentration of credit
risk consist of checking and money market accounts which have been placed with
financial institutions that management deems to be creditworthy. From time-to-time,
cash balances may be in excess of insurance levels. At year-end, there was a significant
uninsured balance; however, the School has not experienced any losses due to bank
failure. 
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f. Capitalization Policy
Computer hardware and furniture and equipment are capitalized at cost or at the fair
value at the date of gift, if donated. The School capitalizes fixed assets in excess of
$1,000 that have a useful life of more than one year. Depreciation was computed using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of each asset, which generally is
between 3 and 7 years. 

g. Contributed Space  
The School’s operations are located in a facility provided by the NYCDOE at no charge. 
The School utilizes approximately 10,000 square feet and recognizes in-kind 
contribution revenue and a corresponding expense in an amount approximating the 
estimated fair value at the time of the donation. Fair value is estimated using the
average price per square foot of rental listings in the School’s service area. The total
amount recognized for donated facilities is approximately $450,000 for both years
ended June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021. 

In-kind contributions on the statement of activities and in-kind occupancy and facility
costs on the statement of functional expenses for the year ended June 30, 2021 were 
restated to reflect this amount. 

h. Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on
a functional basis in the financial statements. Accordingly, certain costs have been 
allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited. Management and
general expenses include those expenses that are not directly identifiable with any
other specific function but provide for the overall support and direction of the School. 

Salaries were allocated using time and effort as the basis. The following costs were
allocated using the salary allocation as the basis: 

 Payroll taxes and benefits 
 Professional development 
 Supplies and materials 
 Office expenses 
 Insurance 
 IT and communications 
 In-kind occupancy and facility costs 
 Non-capitalized equipment and furnishings 
 Depreciation  

Certain program expenses have been allocated between Regular Education and Special 
Education based on student FTE rates. All other expenses have been charged directly to 
the applicable program or supporting services. 

i. Advertising Costs
The cost of advertising is expensed as incurred. 

j. Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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k. Contingencies  
Government contracts are subject to audit by the grantor. Management does not believe
that any audits, if they were to occur, would result in material disallowed costs, and has 
not established any reserves. Any disallowed costs would be recorded in the period
notified. 

l. Accounting for Uncertainty of Income Taxes
The School does not believe its financial statements include any material, uncertain tax
positions. Tax filings for periods ending June 30, 2019 and later are subject to
examination by applicable taxing authorities. 

m. Comparative Financial Information 
The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative 
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information
should be read in conjunction with the School’s financial statements for the year-ended
June 30, 2021 from which the summarized information was derived. 

Note 3 - Government Grants Receivable/(Advance) – Per Pupil Funding 

Activity related to the contract with the NYCDOE can be summarized as follows:

 6/30/22 6/30/21 
Beginning (advance payable)/receivable ($119,108) $11,133 
Funding based on allowable FTEs 5,326,212 3,969,129 
Advances received (5,130,492) (4,093,085) 
Written off  0  (6,285) 
Ending receivable/(advance payable)      $76,612 ($119,108) 

Note 4 - Restricted Cash 

An escrow account has been established to meet the requirement of the NYCDOE. The
purpose of this account is to ensure sufficient funds are available for an orderly dissolution
or transition process in the event of termination of the charter or school closure. 

Note 5 - Fixed Assets 

Fixed assets consist of the following:

 6/30/22 6/30/21 
Furniture and fixtures $356,064 $301,138 
Less: accumulated depreciation  (198,893)    (97,000) 
Total fixed assets, net  $157,171 $204,138 
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Note 6 - Paycheck Protection Program Loan 

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the School obtained a loan from the Small Business
Administration through the Paycheck Protection Program. Terms of the loan indicated that
if certain conditions were met, which included maintaining average work forces during
periods subsequent to receipt of the loan funds that were not less than pre-determined
historical periods, that the loan, or a portion thereof, would be forgiven. The conditions for 
forgiveness on this loan were met during the year ended June 30, 2021, and the full amount
was forgiven and recognized as revenue during fiscal year 2021. 

Note 7 - Significant Concentrations 

The School and the NYCDOE signed an agreement, which permits the school to operate the
charter. Approximately 88% and 86% of the School’s total public support and revenue was
received from the NYCDOE in 2022 and 2021. If the NYCDOE were to discontinue funding, it
would have a severe economic impact on the School’s ability to operate. 

Note 8 – Defined Contribution Plan 

The School maintains a tax deferred 403(b) retirement plan. All employees are eligible to
participate by designating a percentage of their salaries, subject to regulatory limits, to be
contributed to the plan on a pre-tax basis. The School matches employee contributions to
the plan on a discretionary basis and these contributions are immediately vested in full.
The amount of estimated matching payments of $42,000 and $27,000 have been included in
payroll taxes and employee benefits in the accompanying financial statements for the
periods ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

Note 9 - Availability and Liquidity 

The School’s financial assets available to meet cash needs for general expenditures within 
one year are $4,275,357, which consist of cash and cash equivalents of $4,063,147 and
government grants receivable due within one year of $212,210 at June 30, 2022. There are
no external or internal limits imposed on these balances. As part of its liquidity
management, the School operates its programs within a board approved budget and relies
on grants and contributions to fund its operations and program activities. 

Note 10 - Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 6, 2022, the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. There were no material events that have occurred 
that require adjustment to or disclosure to the financial statements. 
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Note 11 - Other Matters 

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus outbreak a
"Public Health Emergency of International Concern" and on March 10, 2020, declared it to
be a pandemic. Actions taken around the world to help mitigate the spread of the
coronavirus include restrictions on travel, quarantines in certain areas, and forced closures
for certain types of public places and businesses. The coronavirus and actions taken to
mitigate it have had and are expected to continue to have an impact on the economies and
financial markets of many countries, including the geographical area in which the School
operates. As of the date of these financial statements, many of the travel restrictions and
stay at home orders have been lifted; however, supply chains remain impacted.
Management continues to monitor the outbreak; however, as of the date of these financial
statements, the potential impact cannot be quantified. 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees of 
Bridge Preparatory Charter School 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Bridge Preparatory
Charter School (the “School”),  which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022,
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended 
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 
6, 2022  

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or 
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Schall & Ashenfarb 
Certified Public Accountants, LLC 

October 6, 2022 
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BRIDGE PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

JUNE 30, 2022 

Current Year: 

None 

Prior Year: 

None – There were no findings in the prior year. 
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Observations and Recommendations 

To Management of
Bridge Preparatory Charter School (the “School”) 

As a result of the audit for the year ended June 30, 2022, we want to provide you with an update on
a recommendation we made during prior audits: 

Debit Card Usage
During past audits, we noted there were purchases made using a debit card. These purchases are
instantly transferred out of the School’s bank account and the person charging the expense is
essentially simultaneously authorizing the payments at the same time they are disbursed. We
recommended that credit cards be used rather than debit cards as it restricts the timing of the
disbursement until after it has had a chance to be reviewed by another within the School. 

Follow-up as of June 30, 2022: Management informed us that they were able to switch to a credit card 
after year-end. We will revisit this issue during next year’s audit. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit and finance committee, the
board of directors and management and others within the organization and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Schall & Ashenfarb
       Certified  Public  Accountants,  LLC  

October 6, 2022 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

  

 
  

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

   
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Communication with Those Charged with Governance 

To the Board of Trustees of 
Bridge Preparatory Charter School 

We have audited the financial statements of Bridge Preparatory Charter School (the “School”) for the
year ended June 30, 2022 and have issued our report thereon dated October 6, 2022. Professional
standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit. 

Our Responsibility under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards
As stated in our engagement letter dated June 21, 2022, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement and are fairly presented in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of the concept of reasonable
assurance and because we did not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk
that material errors, fraud, or other illegal acts may exist and not be detected by us. Our audit of the
financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities. 

Planned Scope of Audit
We performed our audit according to the plan previously communicated to you in our engagement
letter. 

Significant Accounting Policies
Management has the responsibility for selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. No new accounting policies were
adopted during the period under audit and the application of existing policies was not changed
during the year. 

The School’s operations are located in a facility provided by NYC DOE at no charge. The fair value of
the in-kind rent received related to this space was valued at $400,000 for both years ended June 30,
2022 and June 30, 2021. This value was not determined in past years, so in-kind contributions on the
statement of activities and in-kind occupancy and facility costs on the statement of functional
expenses for the year ended June 30, 2021 were restated to reflect this amount.    



  
 

 

 

 
 

  
 

  
 

  

 

 

 
 

 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

We noted no other transactions entered into by the School during the period that were both
significant and unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you,
or transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 

Accounting Estimates 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. 

The most sensitive estimates used in preparing the financial statements were as follows: 

 The allocation of expenses into program, management and fundraising categories and to
determine use of government grant funds 

 Estimate for collectability of receivables 
 Fair value of in-kind contribution  
 Fixed asset depreciation methods and useful lives 

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the above estimate in determining 
that it was reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. The disclosures in the 
financial statements are neutral, consistent and clear. 

Significant Audit Adjustments 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a significant audit adjustment
as a proposed correction of the financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been 
detected except through our auditing procedures. There were no adjustments of this kind.  

There are no known adjustments posed to management that have not been recorded. 

Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are
pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the financial statements or a determination of the
type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the
relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
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Issues Discussed Prior to Retention of Independent Auditors
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management prior to retention as the auditors. There were no specific
matters of this nature discussed prior to our retention.   

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
There were no significant difficulties encountered in performing the audit. 

Management Representations 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter. 

Industry Updates 
We would like to update you on important matters in the not-for-profit sector, including new 
accounting standards, priorities at the IRS and the Office of Management and Budget. 

To summarize: 

Accounting and Auditing Updates 

FASB New Accounting Standard – Accounting Standards Update No. 2020-07 

In September 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU No. 2020-07, 
Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, which 
becomes effective for the June 30, 2022, year with early adoption permitted. The ASU is intended
to improve transparency and consistency of the Gifts-in-Kind (GIK) reporting. The new standard
will require the following changes in the presentation of the Gifts-in-Kind: 

 Separate line-item presentation on Statement of Activities. 
 The footnotes will disclose: 

o Desegregation of the amount contributed. 
o Whether nonfinancial GIKs were sold or utilized and description of the

program/activities in which those assets were used. 
o NFP’s policy (if any) for monetizing rather than utilizing contributed nonfinancial

assets. 
o A description of any donor restrictions associated with the contributed 

nonfinancial assets. 
o How fair value was arrived at, provide a description of the valuation techniques and

inputs used to arrive at a fair value measure for GIKs. 

FASB New Accounting Standard – Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02 

On February 25, 2016, the FASB issued an ASU No. 2016-02, Leases. Under this standard, all leases,
including operating leases, with terms of more than twelve months will be required to be reflected
as assets and liabilities on the statement of financial position. The asset will be for the rights to use
the property, equipment or space and the liability will be for the present value of the total
obligations created by that lease. 
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ASU No. 2020-05 delayed the required adoption date of this new standard (ASU No. 2016-02 and
related ASUs) until fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2021, which for practical
purposes will be years ending December 31, 2022, or June 30, 2023. During the time before
implementation is required, it is important for you to determine how this change will impact your
organization. Important financial ratios and measures will change, and that is especially relevant
to organizations that have loans with debt covenants. 

Auditing Standards Changes 

During 2019 and 2020, the Auditing Standards Board (ASB) issued new Statements on Auditing
Standards (SASs) Nos. 134-140. As amended by SAS No. 141, Amendment to the Effective Dates of
SAS Nos. 134–140, the new standards are effective for audits of financial statements for fiscal years
ending on or after December 15, 2021 (calendar year-end 2021 and fiscal year-end 2022 financial
statements).  

These standards impact several aspects of an audit. Some of the most significant changes are: 

- SAS 134 
o Addresses changes to the auditor’s report. The auditor’s report will start with the

opinion followed by basis of opinion. Users of the audited financial statements will
benefit from added visibility of the opinion as it will be at the front of the report. In
addition, the new report has enhanced descriptions of the responsibilities of 
management and auditors. 

o Introduces Key Audit Matters (KAM) reporting. The presentation of KAM is not 
required, however, NFPs may engage their auditors to perform additional procedures
and report on KAM. KAM might include areas of higher risk of material misstatement,
areas of the financial statements that involve significant judgment or significant events
or transactions occurring during the current year audit. 

- SAS 135 
o Enhances audit quality by heightening the auditor’s focus on related party transactions

and significant unusual transactions. Communications to those charged with
governance will include required significant unusual transactions and related party
communication.  

- SAS 137 
o Addresses auditor’s responsibilities relating to an NFPs annual report providing for

performance, documentation, and reporting requirements. The auditor’s main
responsibility under this standard is to consider whether a material inconsistency
exists between the information reported in an annual report and the audited financial
statements and to remain alert for indications that a material misstatement of fact 
exists. 
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IRS Updates 

CHAR500 

The new threshold for submitting financial statements with the annual filing (CHAR500) is effective
starting with fiscal years beginning on or after July 1, 2021, as follows: 

 Organizations with total revenues greater than $1 million will be required to submit audited
financial statements with the CHAR500 filing. 

 Organizations with total revenues between $250,000 and $1 million will be required to
submit a review report with the CHAR500 filing. 

Schedule B No Longer Required with CHAR 500 
The New York Attorney General’s Charities Bureau has suspended its collection of IRS Form 990
Schedule B while it reviews any amendments that may be necessary to its policies, procedures, and
forms in order to comply with the U.S. Supreme Court’s decision in Americans for Prosperity
Foundation v. Bonta (594 U.S. __, 2021). Annual filings will no longer require disclosure information
that identifies donors. Any notices that charities have received regarding a deficiency due to missing
or incomplete Schedule Bs are no longer operative as to such deficiency, and annual filings will no
longer be considered deficient in such regard. 
2020 Form 990-T 

The Form 990-T has been revised for tax year 2020 to allow for e-filing in calendar year 2021
(reporting on tax year 2020), as required by the Taxpayer First Act. Revisions are also being made to 
improve its utility for reporting unrelated business taxable income consistent with the 'silo' rules of
Section 512(a)(6) as put in place by the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. The 2020 Form 990-T separates the
tax computation (which will be on Form 990-T) from reporting of separate unrelated trades or
businesses, which will be on as many Schedules A (Form 990-T) as the organization needs.  

Additionally, the Treasury Department and the IRS issued final regulations under IRC Section 
512(a)(6), which requires an exempt organization subject to the unrelated business income tax that
has more than one unrelated trade or business to calculate unrelated business taxable income,
separately with respect to each such trade or business. The final regulations provide guidance on
how an exempt organization subject to the UBIT determines if it has more than one unrelated trade
or business, and if so, how it calculates UBIT. 

Tax Exempt & Government Entities FY 2021 Program Letter 

The IRS TE/GE Entities Division released its program letter which details the main priorities of the 
division for the upcoming fiscal year. One of the key issues within the division continues to be the
review of worker classification to ensure organizations are not reducing their tax burden by
incorrectly treating workers as independent contractors instead of employees. Worker 
misclassification results in employers underreporting and underpaying Federal Insurance
Contributions Act (FICA) and Federal Income taxes and may also result in incorrect exclusion from
employer retirement plans. 
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Consolidated Appropriations Act:  Charitable Giving Impact 

Signed into law on December 27, 2020, the legislation extended through 2021, several areas of the
CARES Act that relate to charitable giving including: the increased deduction limitation related to
certain types of donations of food inventory, above-the-line charitable contribution deductions for
non-itemizers and the increased deduction limitations for cash contributions. 

Government Auditing Updates 

2021 Compliance Supplement 

In August 2021, the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) released the 2021 OMB Compliance 
Supplement. This Supplement is effective for audits of fiscal years beginning after June 30, 2020, e.g.,
fiscal years ending on June 30, 2021, and later. 

Some of the most significant highlights are: 

 Overview 
The Compliance Supplement is the primary document for the programs that are subject 
to the Uniform Guidance (UG). 
OMB will be releasing two Addenda to the 2021 Supplement later in 2021, primarily to 
address new programs established by the American Rescue Plan. 
A 6-month audit submission extension has been provided by OMB to all entities for 
fiscal years through June 30, 2021.  

o Entities with a fiscal year-end of December 31, 2020 - the single audits were due
on September 30, 2021 and are now extended to March 31, 2022. 

o Entities with a fiscal year-end of June 30, 2021 - the single audits were due on 
March 31, 2022 and are now extended to September 30, 2022. 

 Part 2, Matrix of Compliance Requirements 
Changes to the compliance requirements are identified in bold and yellow highlighting. 

 Part 3, Compliance Requirements 
Updated to reflect the August 2020 revisions to the Uniform Guidance. 
Incorporates into the Reporting section a new reporting requirement relating to 
recipient reporting under the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act 
(FFATA), along with guidance on when auditors must test FFATA. 
Clarifies key requirements for the Provider Relief Fund program, including the amount 
and timing of expenditures and lost revenues to be reported on the SEFA and what the 
auditor is required to test. 

 Part 4, Agency Program Requirements 
There are several program additions and deletions as well as many programs with 
significant changes. 
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Identifies several programs as higher-risk programs, including the Education 
Stabilization Fund, the Coronavirus Relief Fund and the Provider Relief Fund and 
Medicaid Cluster. 
Identified new American Rescue Plan (ARP) programs as high risk. 

 Part 5, Clusters 
The Student Financial Assistance cluster has numerous compliance requirement 
changes. 
Note that Appendix VII states that there will be no other clusters formed by the ARP nor 
will any ARP numbers be added to existing clusters. 

 Appendix V 
Provides an overview of the changes made from the 2020 Supplement. 

 Appendix VII 
Provides additional guidance on COVID-19 funding. 
Provides an indication of the programs that may be included in the Addenda. 

Reminder of the Changes to Uniform Guidance  

In August 2020, OMB issued revisions to the Uniform Guidance (2 CFR Part 200). 

Changes to the procurement standards: 
 Procurement types have been grouped into three categories: 

Informal (micro-purchase, small purchase) 
Formal (sealed bids, proposals) 
Non-competitive (sole source) 

The UG has been aligned with recently enacted federal laws to raise: 
 The micro-purchase threshold has increased from $3,500 to $10,000. 
 The simplified acquisition threshold has increased from $150,000 to $250,000. 

Nonfederal entities are authorized to request a micro-purchase threshold higher than the $10,000
based on certain conditions. 

Expansion of the de minimis indirect cost rate (200.414) 
Previously, to claim the de minimis indirect cost rate, an entity could not have previously had a
federal indirect rate in their entire life history. With the change, if the entity does not have a current 
federal indirect cost rate, then they are now eligible for the de minimis rate. 
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Shuttered Venue Operators Grant 

Shuttered Venue Operators Grant (SVOG) is subject to Single Audit under UG. Under the terms of the
SVOG, recipients are not required to repay the funding so long as funds are used for eligible expenses.
Not-for-profit entities should account for government grants in accordance with the contributions
model in the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) subsection 958-605, Not-for-Profit 
Entities – Revenue Recognition. Because entitlement to the payments is conditioned upon having
incurred eligible expenses (a barrier) and because noncompliance with the terms of the grant is
grounds for recoupment by the SBA (right of return), the payments are considered conditional
contributions under ASC 958-605. Thus, contribution revenue would be recognized only to the extent
that eligible expenses have been incurred. 

The Organization will need to evaluate their individual facts and circumstances to determine the
extent to which conditions have been substantially met at a given reporting date. 

Legislative/Regulatory Updates 

Accounting considerations for Paycheck Protection Program  

The Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) was established by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security (CARES) Act to provide funds for businesses to keep their workers on the payroll.
The funds were provided in the form of low-interest loans that are guaranteed by the Small Business
Administration (SBA). Terms of the loan indicate that if certain conditions are met, which include
maintaining average work forces during periods subsequent to receipt of the loan funds that are
greater than pre-determined historical periods, that the loan, or a portion thereof, would be forgiven. 
Portions that are not forgiven will be payable over a five-year period, with a ten-month deferral of
payments and interest will accrue at 1%. 

Given the unique nature of these loans, questions have arisen as to how a borrower should account
for the loan in accordance with US Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). There are two
existing models that a NFP entity may choose from. 

The loan can be accounted for as a financial liability in accordance with ASC 470, Debt, and interest, 
if material, should be accrued. Following the guidance in ASC 470, a borrower would recognize the
entire loan amount as a liability. A loan is removed as a liability at the time payment is made or the
loan gets forgiven. 

Many NFP’s view this loan as a grant that is expected to be forgiven. NFP’s can account for the PPP
loan in accordance with ASC 958-605 as a conditional contribution, whereby revenue is not
recognized until the conditions are substantially met or explicitly waived. Under this model, the
proceeds from a PPP loan would initially be recognized as a refundable advance, a liability, until the
conditions for forgiveness are substantially met. The borrower needs to identify what the conditions
are, which include satisfying the requirement to maintain levels of workforce and incur allowable
expenses, and in some cases the submission of the application or forgiveness. Under this recognition
model, NFPs should carefully track costs that are eligible for forgiveness, and understand that costs
funded by other grants, contracts and contributions may not be allowable for forgiveness under the
concept of double dipping. Therefore, NFPs should keep internal records of which costs are being
applied to PPP forgiveness, government grants and private grants (preferably in the accounting
system) to reduce the risk that the same costs are not charged to other funding sources. 
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Employee Retention Tax Credit (ERTC): 

 General overview: 
Available to all employers, but there are certain tests that need to be met and different 
calculations for the credit based on FTE in 2019. 
There are also two different versions of the credit for each year it is offered – 2020 and 
2021. 

 Eligibility – To qualify for ERTC. employers must experience either of the following: 
Employer must experience gross receipts reductions of >50% of the comparable 
quarter in 2019 and gross receipts reductions of >20% of the comparable quarter in 
2020. 
Full or partial suspension of business by the government due to COVID-19. 

 Gross receipts defined: 
Solely for purposes of determining eligibility for the Employee Retention Credit, gross
receipts for a tax-exempt employer include gross receipts from all operations, not only
from activities that constitute unrelated trades or businesses. For example, gross
receipts for this purpose include amounts received by the organization from total sales
(net of returns and allowances) and all amounts received for services, whether or not
those sales or services are substantially related to the organization’s exercise or
performance of the exempt purpose or function constituting the basis for its exemption.
Gross receipts also include the organization’s investment income, including from
dividends, rents, and royalties, as well as the gross amount received as contributions,
gifts, grants, and similar amounts, and the gross amount received as dues or 
assessments from members or affiliated organizations. 

PPP loan forgiveness is not considered part of gross income. 

 Suspension: 
What are not considered suspensions? 

o Ability to resume similar activity by telecommuting 
o A reduction of demand for products or services 
o Voluntary suspensions 

Partial suspension is defined as closure of the workplace that causes the employer to
suspend business operations for certain purposes, but not others: 

o Every case is unique 
o Examples of partial suspension: A physical therapy facility is shut down due to

government order. Prior to the shutdown, none of the employees provided
services via telework and all services were rendered at the workplace. Due to
the shutdown, the facility moved to an online format to serve clients remotely,
but employees are unable to access specific equipment or tools and not all
clients can be served remotely. Due to these factors, this is considered a partial
suspension since access to the equipment is essential to the employer’s
operations and the business operations could not continue in a comparable 
manner. 
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 Credit calculation: 
2020 version: 50% of qualifying wages up to $10k per employee for the period of 
03/13/20 to 12/31/20. 
2021 version: 70% of qualifying wages up to $10k per employee per quarter. 

 How do you receive the credit? 
Claim the credit on Form 941 or 941-X (if amending a previously filed return for the 
credit). 
Request an advance of the credit by filing Form 7200, but there is administrative work 
needed in reconciling the advance against the credit. 

 Interaction with PPP: 
Initially, PPP and ERTC were mutually exclusive when introduced by the CARES Act. 
With the enactment of the Consolidated Appropriation Act (CAA), the initial restrictions 
for PPP and ERTC were removed, so employers could qualify for both programs. 
There is no double benefit on the same eligible expenses, so it becomes an optimization 
effort 

COVID-19 EIDL  

US Small Business Administration (SBA) offers working capital low-interest fixed rate loan to help
overcome the effects of the pandemic. The loan is intended to help with making regular payments for
operating expenses, including payroll, rent/mortgage, utilities, and other ordinary business
expenses, and to pay business debt. The loan should be repaid over 30-year period with the interest
at 2.75%. Payments are deferred for the first 2 years (during which interest will accrue), and
payments of principal and interest are made over the remaining 28 years. To apply visit 
www.sba.gov.  

Independence Issues
Schall & Ashenfarb, CPA’s, LLC is not aware of any relationships that our firm, or any employees
thereof, has with the School or any of its board trustees that, in our professional judgment may impair
our independence. 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Trustees and management of Bridge
Preparatory Charter School and should not be used for any other purpose. 

       Schall  &  Ashenfarb
       Certified  Public  Accountants,  LLC  

October 6, 2022 
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FILL IN GRAY CELLS 
Bridge Prep Charter School 

Statement of Financial Position 
as of June 30 

2022 2021 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents  $  4,063,147  $  2,307,106 
Grants and contracts receivable 212,210 38,214 
Accounts receivables - -
Prepaid Expenses                                     -                           80,387 
Contributions and other receivables                                     -                                     -
Other current assets                                     -                                     -
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS                     4,275,357                     2,425,707 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net  $  157,171  $  204,138 
Restricted Cash                           75,420                           60,243 
Security Deposits                                     -                                     -
Other Non-Current Assets                                     -                                     -
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS                        232,591                        264,381 

TOTAL ASSETS 4,507,948 2,690,088 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $  356,978  $  280,229 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits                                     -                                     -
Current Portion of Loan Payable                                     -                                     -
Due to Related Parties                                     -                                     -
Refundable Advances                                     -                                     -
Deferred Revenue                                     -                        119,108 
Other Current Liabilities                                     -                                     -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES                        356,978                        399,337 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year  $                                 -  $                                 -
Deferred Rent                                     -                                     -
Due to Related Party                                     -                                     -
Other Long-Term Liabilities                                     -                                     -
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES                                     -                                     -

TOTAL LIABILITIES                        356,978                        399,337 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted  $  4,150,970  $  2,290,751 
Temporarily restricted                                     -                                     -
Permanently restricted                                     -                                     -
TOTAL NET ASSETS                     4,150,970                     2,290,751 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS                     4,507,948                     2,690,088 



  

                  
                                    

                   
                

                
    

     

    

                                  
     

                    
           

       
 

                         

    

                                                                  

FILL IN GRAY CELLS 
Bridge Prep Charter School 

Statement of Activities 
as of June 30 

 Unrestricted
2022 

 Temporarily 
Restricted 

 Total 
2021
 Total 

OPERATING REVENUE
 State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - Reg. Ed 
 State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - SPED
 State and Local Per Pupil Facilities Revenue
Federal Grants

 State and City Grants
 Other Operating Income
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

 $  3,263,390 
                  2,062,822 
                                  - 
                     298,023 
                                  -
                                  -
                                  -
                  5,624,235 

 $  -  $  
                                  - 
                                  - 

                                  - 
                                  -
                                  -
                                  -
                                  - 

3,263,390 
                  2,062,822 

 -
                     298,023 
                                  -
                                  -
                                  -
                  5,624,235 

 $  2,386,204 
 1,582,925 

                                  -
  105,831 

                       -
                       -

                                  -
                  4,074,960 

EXPENSES 
Program Services

 Regular Education 
 Special Education 
 Other Programs
Total Program Services
Management and general
Fundraising
TOTAL EXPENSES

 $  1,311,223 
                  2,186,818 
                                  -
                  3,498,041 
                     762,123 
                                  -
                  4,260,164 

 $  -  $  
                                  - 
                                  -
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  -
                                  - 

1,311,223 
                  2,186,818 
                                  -
                  3,498,041 
                     762,123 
                                  -
                  4,260,164 

 $  809,909 
                  1,424,695 
                                  -
                  2,234,604 
                     423,637 
                                  -
                  2,658,241 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS                   1,364,071                                   -                   1,364,071                   1,416,719 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Interest and Other Income

 Contributions and Grants 
 Fundraising Support
 Investments
Donated Services
Other Support and Revenue
TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE

 $                                -
                       32,347 
                                  -
                                  -
                                  -
                     463,801 
                     496,148 

 $                                -  $
                                  - 
                                  -
                                  -
                                  -
                                  -
                                  - 

 -
                       32,347 
                                  -
                                  -
                                  -
                     463,801 
                     496,148 

 $                                -
                    5,000 

                   -
                            -

                               -
                     139,352 
                     144,352 

 Net Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on Disposal of Assets  $                                -  $                                -  $                                -  $            -

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS                   1,860,219                                   -                   1,860,219                   1,561,071 

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR
PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

 $  2,290,751 
                                  -

 $  -  $  
                                  -

2,290,751 
                                  -

 $  729,680 
                                  -

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR  $  4 150 970  $  -  $  4 150 970  $  2 290 751 

CK - Should be zero - -



 
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                              
                                                                           
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                                   
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      

                                                                                                       
                                                                                                      

  

                                                                            
  

                                                                      

  
                                      
                                   

   
 

  
  

FILL IN GRAY CELLS 
Bridge Prep Charter School 

Statement of Cash Flows 
as of June 30 

2022 2021 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets
Revenues from School Districts 
Accounts Receivable 
Due from School Districts 
Depreciation 
Grants Receivable 
Due from NYS 
Grant revenues 
Prepaid Expenses 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Expenses 
Accrued Liabilities 
Contributions and fund-raising activities 
Miscellaneous sources 
Deferred Revenue 
Interest payments 
Restricted Cash 
Security Deposit
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 $  

 $  

1,860,219 
-
-
-

101,893 
(212,717) 

-
-

76,749 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

                                                    -
1,826,144 

 $  

 $  

1,561,071 
-
-
-

63,688 
260,690 

-
-

8,142 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

                                                    -
1,893,591 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of equipment 
Other
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

 $ 

 $ 

(54,926) 
                                                    -

(54,926)

 $ 

 $ 

(119,316) 
                                                    -

(119,316) 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on long-term debt
Other
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

 $ 

 $

                                                    -
                                                    -

                                                 -

 $ 

 $ 

                                                    -
(136 000) 
(136 000) 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

 $  

 $  

1,771,218 
                                    2 367 349 

4 138 567 

 $  

 $  

1,638,275 
                                       729 074 

2 367 349 
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Bridge Preparatory Charter School - Board Meeting - Minutes - Wednesday September 15, 2021 at 7:00 PM 

Welcome 

R. Kerr welcomed the board members and guest attendees; welcome back to 
Executive Director Tim Castanza after his leave over the summer; she thanked all 
board members for everything they do and said we have an exciting year ahead; 
L. TImoney introduced Mark Harmon-Vaught, director of the Office of the 
President at Wagner College, former special assistant to the superintendent, 
project manager, and acting chief of staff at KIPP NYC Public Schools. M.  
Harmon-Vaught will be joining our board as a new member: He spoke briefly 
about his family's history in the education field, particularly his grandfather who 
was his mentor, a special education teacher and administrator; he believes all 
children have the right to learn and should have that opportunity; he is looking 
forward to working with our board members. 
L. Timoney then introduced Becky Peters, a professor at Fordham University 
Gabelli School of Business, finance associate for NYC Charter School of the Arts 
and financial manager at Charter School Business Management (CSBM); B.  
Peters said she is excited to be here, to learn about Bridge Prep Charter School 
and get to know the board; she wants to see if it is the right fit for her. 

II. Committee Reports 

A. Executive Committee 

R. Kerr gave the following report on the Executive Committee meeting held on 
September 8th: Board's mission, building capacity and stamina were discussed; 
also set up co-chairs for the standing committees. 

• Executive Committee: Rose Kerr, Chair; the Executive Committee is a 
steering committee that discusses topics to be presented to the full board at 
the regular monthly board meeting; Executive Committee members are 
Board of Trustee officers. BOT Chair Rose Kerr, BOT Vice-Chair Laurel 
Gyimesi, BOT Treasurer, George Winn, BOT Secretary Laura Timoney and 
BOT member Maria Casale. 

Under the Executive Committee, two task force sub-committees will be formed: 
Executive Director Support & Evaluation Task Force, Laura Timoney, Chair 
and 
Reauthorization Task Force, Laurel Gyimesi, Chair 

• Finance Committee: George Winn & Laura Timoney, Co-Chairs 
• Academic Committee: Rose Kerr & Maria Casale, Co-Chairs 
• Governance Committee: Laurel Gyimesi & Azalia Volpe, Co-Chairs 

B. Academic Committee 

R. Kerr gave the following report: 
Starting at the October Academic Committee meeting, there will be presiding co-
chairs; 
A committee meeting was held yesterday morning; our Executive Director will 
cover most of what we discussed at that meeting, i.e., highlights of the school 
opening, staffing needs, after-school enrichment program, mental health & SEL 
initiatives, OG benchmarking assessment; starting in October we will begin 
reviewing our academic Dashboard report at each board meeting. 

The next Academic Committee meeting will be October 13th at 9:15 AM. 
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Future Academic Committee meetings will be the 2nd Wednesday of each 
month at 9:15 AM. 

C. Finance Committee 

G. Winn gave the following report: 
Welcomed Laura Timoney as co-chair of this committee; the ongoing school 
financial audit will be discussed further at the October board meeting; anyone who 
wishes to serve on the Finance Committee should let G. Winn or L. Timoney 
know. 

The next Finance Committee meeting will be October 11th at 4 PM. 
Future Finance Committee meetings will be on the 2nd Monday of each 
month at 4 PM 
(adjustments to meeting dates/times can be made for convenience of committee 
members) 

D. Board Development & Governance 

L. Gyimesi gave the following report: 
Welcomed Azalia Volpe as new co-chair of this committee; we are working on 
training sessions for new board members and expect to meet on the 1st Thursday 
of each month at 9 AM, but would like to see if that date/time is good for the other 
committee members before final determination; expect to meet with co-chair, 
Azalia Volpe next week to set this year's goals for the committee. 

The next Governance Committee meeting will tentatively be October 7th at 9 
AM. 
Future Governance Committee meetings will tentatively be on the 1st 
Thursday of each month at 9 AM. (adjustments to meeting dates/times may be 
made for convenience of committee members) 

E. ED Support & Evaluation 

L. Timoney gave the following report: 
We received an email today from NYS Education Department approving Geena 
Kuriakose as a Board of Trustees member with full voting privileges. 
She likes the idea of co-chairs and the methodology of spreading our institutional 
knowledge to new board members for purposes of succession; she encourages 
BOT members to join the ED Support & Evaluation Committee to help set the 
goals for the ED and to write the ED evaluation this school year. 

III. Votes 

A. Resolution to appoint Board Member 
L. Timoney made a motion to Approve Resolution #10 - Selecting Mark Harmon-
Vaught as Member of Board of Trustees. 
G. Winn seconded the motion. 
The following resolution was read aloud and followed by an individual voice-vote 
of board members: 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of Bridge Preparatory Charter School (“Bridge 
Prep”) deems it to be in the best interests of Bridge Prep that the following action 
be taken by the Board of Trustees of Bridge Prep pursuant to this Resolution: 
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WHEREAS, The Bridge Preparatory Charter School Board of Trustees, having 
conducted a thorough criminal history record check via fingerprinting which is 
deemed acceptable by NYSED, and having discovered no State or Federal 
criminal history, or having provided information regarding such history to NYSED, 
if found, and having verified that any academic and/or professional credential or 
qualification presented by the proposed member is genuine, and having reviewed 
the application in its entirety, has voted to select Mark Harmon-Vaught as a 
member to its Board of Trustees, with a term expiring on June 2024 pending 
approval by NYSED. The resolution approving Mark Harmon-Vaught is adopted 
upon NYSED’s approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, pursuant to applicable law, and the 
authorizing Charter, the undersigned, being a majority of the Members of Bridge 
Prep hereby consent to, approve, and adopt the aforesaid Resolution. 

Roll Call: 
A. Volpe Aye 
R. Kerr Aye 
M. Casale Aye 
A. Margolis Absent 
L. Timoney Aye 
G. Winn Aye 
L. Gyimesi Aye 
F. Santarpia Aye 
G. Kuriakose Aye 

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

B. Health & Safety Policy 

L. Timoney made a motion to Approve the Bridge Prep Supplemental Health 
Policy Related to COVID-19 Vaccination and Testing. 
R. Kerr seconded the motion. 
Executive Director Tim Castanza explained the Bridge Prep policies regarding 
COVID vaccination and testing pertaining to school staff; under new Department 
of Health regulations, all school staff must be fully vaccinated or receive their first 
vaccination by September 27th. Since the DOH regulations supersede all previous 
policies and school rules, school staff is no longer allowed to vaccinate OR test for 
COVID and now MUST be vaccinated. The complete Bridge Prep Supplemental 
Health Policy was shared with the board members before the vote regarding the 
changes to the policy. A brief discussion followed regarding the changes, the UFT 
agreement and Department of Health mandates. The wording of the resolution 
was determined to be sufficient at the current time. 

Roll Call: 
L. Timoney Aye 
R. Kerr Aye 
F. Santarpia Aye 
L. Gyimesi Aye 
M. Casale Aye 
G. Winn Aye 
G. Kuriakose Aye 
A. Volpe Abstain 
A. Margolis Absent 

The board VOTED to approve the motion. 
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IV. Executive Director Update 

A. ED's Report 
T. Castanza welcomed back the board members and said it was good to see new 
faces on the board; he enjoyed his parental leave this summer but it is good to be 
back; we had a successful first day of school and have 65 new families joining us; 
we are now located in a split-site on the Petrides Campus, which requires 
adjustment and extra effort by staff and parents; the first few days of school are for 
students get comfortable - not much in academics covered yet. Our annual 
financial audit is being done by Schall & Ashenfarb and we expect the draft of their 
report to be sent to us within a week; we will review and share the audit report with 
the Finance Committee and for full board approval at the October meeting. We will 
finally receive our Start-Up Grant from the NYC Dept of Community & Youth 
Development (DYCD) soon; we will notify the Finance Committee of specific 
amounts once we receive them. Based on new guidelines we received related to 
space, health and safety, we decided to change course and move our grade 4 
students to the new space instead of Grades 1 and 2; furniture from the DOE is 
experiencing significant delays so we borrowed furniture from other schools for 
opening day; Fresh painting is nearly complete and Bridge Prep specific branding 
will happen next week; our new Interim Acting Director of Teaching and Learning, 
Cheryl Otterbeck began on September 1st; we expect to post the permanent job 
position next week. F. Ebanks vetted several different vendors to overhaul our 
website; we have identified a group that can design and maintain our website; 
after final review of the proposal it will be brought to the board for contract 
approval at the October meeting. Summer professional development was 
successful; the Singapore Math program offered by Shelly DuBose was very well 
received and will be offered again in January. The After-School Academic 
Enrichment Program in ELA/Math/Science will focus on recovery from remote 
learning and will start in mid-October for 1 hour on Mondays/Wednesdays/ 
Fridays. Social workers offer SEL class and they will focus on students' needs 
regarding the transition back to in-person learning. 

B. Monthly Financials 

Monthly financial records were viewed. L. Timoney offered to send a copy of the 
financial record to Becky Peters for her review. 

V. School Update 

A. Family Association Update 

A. Volpe gave the following report: 
The first Family Association meeting was held on September 13th and was well-
attended; it was held remotely via Zoom and will continue to be done that way. 
October is Dyslexia Awareness Month and we will plan something for that event. 
Book vending machines will be in place by mid-October; each building will get a 
vending machine; O'Neills Dine-In will be held on October 29th to benefit the 
Family Association. Contacted City Councilmember Debi Rose's office regarding 
the traffic chaos on Renwick Ave and Little Clove Road at dismissal; a request will 
be put into NYPD for assistance with traffic control. 

VI. Other Business 

A. New Business 
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L. Timoney said that the Board of Trustees have all been assigned new email 
addresses which consist of their first initial and last name followed by 
@bridgeprepcharter.org 
R. Illuzzi welcomed M. Harmon-Vaught to the Board of Trustees and recommends 
that he visit the school and speak to the families; she said it was exciting and 
wonderful to see the children back in school and hopes to see more of the board 
members; we are all really dedicated to our students and families and the 
happiness is obvious in our school. 
G. Kuriakose attended professional development workshops over the summer and 
was very impressed; she is happy that this type of professional development is 
being done regularly to help teachers with curriculum planning, etc. 
M. Casale is happy that the workshops were appreciated; and after devoting 30 
years of her life to this, she is pleased to co-chair the Academic Committee with R. 
Kerr whom she thanked. 

VII. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:07 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
K. Baldassano 
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L. Timoney called a meeting of the board of trustees of Bridge Preparatory Charter 
School to order on Wednesday Oct 20, 2021 at 7:00 PM. 

C. Approve Minutes 

L. Timoney made a motion to approve the minutes from Board Meeting on 09-15-
21. 
M. Harmon-Vaught seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

D. Welcome 

R. Kerr welcomed everyone and offered congratulations to Mark Harmon Vaught 
as the newest board member; 
Amy Margolis resigned her position on the board due to the pandemic and family 
responsibilities and we thank her for being part of our board's founding; we could 
not have accomplished so much without her expertise; she hopes to contribute in 
the future on an advisory basis. 
R. Kerr welcomed Eric Shuffler, a driving force in innovations for our community; 
Mr. Shuffler spoke briefly to say that he is one of the owners of the entity bringing 
a new minor league baseball team back to Staten Island; he is partnered with 
John Catsimatidis and others; they hope to turn the Staten Island stadium into a 
year-round entertainment center for use by the community; Mr. Schuffler lives on 
the upper West side of Manhattan, was a PTA president and helped start a 
neighborhood school; he has a 14-year-old dyslexic son and wants to help other 
families to access some of the educational benefits that his son received. R. Kerr 
thanked him and said that she hopes he will be involved with our school, our board 
and our community. 

II. Committee Reports 

A. Executive Committee 

R. Kerr reported that the Executive Committee met on October 12th and the 
following topics were discussed: the committee co-chair structure and meeting 
schedules - the meeting schedules are available online; a welcome package for 
new board members was discussed; a possible retreat planned; a structured 
approach to recruiting new board members; ED support and evaluation; reaching 
mutual goals with the ED to hopefully grow as an organization. 
The next Executive Committee Meeting will be November 2nd at 7:45 am. 

B. Academic Committee 

R. Kerr & M. Casale reported that the Academic Committee met on October 13th 
and discussed the following topics: a school staffing profile; the impact of the 
COVID mandate; the hiring status for the Director of Teaching & Learning (DTL) -
a still vacant position - and changing the hiring profile to invite DTL candidates to 
spend a day visiting our school; an update on the Building A expansion; the after-
school COVID related recovery program; status of IEP mandated services and 
how these were impacted by staff vacancies; the citywide impact of COVID on 
school busing; a dashboard presentation was given, including baseline OG data. 
Executive Director T. Castanza was invited to speak about the dashboard 
presentation given at the last Academic Committee meeting. 
T. Castanza reviewed each page of the October dashboard with the board and 
focused on 2 sections: special education data and baseline Orton Gillingham 
assessment data; the OG data represents the average score (per grade) on each 
metric of the assessment; the growth of this data will be monitored between now 
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and January; the November dashboard will include F&P assessments; MAP (ELA 
& math) assessments; attendance data for the first 2 months and school 
demographic data. 
The next Academic Committee Meeting will be November 10th at 9:15 am. 

C. Finance Committee 

G. Winn & L. Timoney reported that the Finance Committee met on October 4th 
and the following topics were discussed: we met with Schall & Ashenfarb who 
completed our school's audit which was clean; the audit report will need to be 
approved by the board before submission to NYSED; how approvals are made on 
recurring bills; a possible idea is an omnibus method of approving payments of 
recurring amounts specified in contracts - we may need to adjust the language of 
our financial procedures to allow this; we received some good advice from Schall 
& Ashenfarb about setting up a line of credit for the school; we are looking at our 
budgeting schedule for the coming year; also looking at the compliance calendar. 
The next Finance Committee Meeting will be on November 8th at 4:00 pm. 

D. Board Development & Governance 

L. Gyimesi & A. Volpe reported that the Governance Committee met on October 
7th and the following topics were discussed: an orientation and welcome packet 
for new board members; our goals for the year; a board retreat with guest 
speakers, possibly in November; working on a task force on renewal of charter -
looking into retaining a company to help us focus on strategic planning and 
renewing our charter - they will offer a presentation to the Executive Committee 
and will then give a presentation to the full board of trustees; a structured 
approach to board member recruitment; possibly bring guest speakers to some 
board meetings; would like to have some clarification on the Open Meetings Law 
especially if we return to in-person attendance at meetings - when are minutes 
necessary or not; maybe invite someone from the NYC Charter Center to come 
and speak to us regarding how other charter schools are handling some of the 
current issues of lack of staffing and support services, vaccination mandates, 
busing problems, etc. A. Volpe added that she spoke to Daniela at the NYC 
Charter Center and she will be happy to help us; an outreach to any other charter 
schools that specialize in dyslexia to see what they are doing. 
The next Governance Committee Meeting will be November 4th at 8:00 am. 

E. ED Support & Evaluation 

L. Timoney reported that the ED Support & Evaluation Task Force is working on 
goals and expect to have a meeting very soon with more information. 

F. Hiring Committee 

T. Castanza reported that resumes for candidates for the Director of Teaching & 
Learning (DTL) position have been received and candidates were screened and 
we are near completion of the screening process; expect to have 3 final 
candidates presented to the Hiring Committee within a week; he expects there to 
be a decision or much progress by next month's meeting. 

III. Votes 

A. Motion to Amend 6/16/21 Minutes previously adopted 

L. Timoney made a motion to to amend the minutes of the Board Meeting of June 
16, 2021 to include the full and complete wording of Resolution #9 selecting 
Geena Kuriakose as a member of the Board of Trustees. 
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L. Gyimesi seconded the motion. 
L. Timoney explained that NYSED requires that the full and complete wording of a 
board resolution selecting a new board member must appear in the body of the 
minutes of the meeting when the resolution vote was held. Because the previously 
approved minutes of June 16, 2021 reflect the actual vote on Resolution #9 
selecting Geena Kuriakose to the Board of Trustees but did not contain the full 
and complete wording of the actual resolution, we must vote now to amend the 
minutes of June 16, 2021 to add and include the necessary wording. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

B. Motion to approve updated Board Chart 
L. Timoney made a motion to approve the Bridge Prep Charter School Board 
Member Chart as presented at tonight's meeting, with corrections to the email 
addresses listed for A. Volpe and G. Kuriakose. 
G. Kuriakose seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

C. Vote to Approve Audit 
L. Timoney made a motion to approve the Bridge Prep Charter School Audit 
Report as prepared by Schall & Ashenfarb and presented to the Board of Trustees 
at tonight's meeting. 
A. Volpe seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

D. Vote to Approve BoardOnTrack Contract 
L. Timoney made a motion to approve the Board-On-Track Renewal Membership 
Agreement for 2021-2022 as indicated by the agreement document presented to 
the Board of Trustees at tonight's meeting. 
R. Kerr seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

E. Vote to Approve Website Contract 
L. Timoney made a motion to approve the Finalsite Creative and Deployment 
Services Package (contract) with a launch goal of January 31, 2022 as presented 
to the Board of Trustees at tonight's meeting. 
A. Volpe seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

IV. Executive Director Update 

A. ED's Report 
Executive Director T. Castanza gave the following report: this has been a 
tumultuous 8 weeks due to vaccine mandates, bus service disruptions, staff 
vacancies and other COVID-related issues; staff and teachers are working very 
hard and students and families are happy; current staff vacancies are 2 classroom 
teachers and 1 SETSS teacher - candidates are being reviewed; a social worker 
has been hired; the allocations of the ARP Grant of $254,000 are being discussed 
for this school year; October is Dyslexia Awareness Month and our school is 
hosting a November screening of the film "Confetti" as part of the "1,000 
Community Screening" movement - the film is the story of a parent learning to 
navigate the complexities of raising a child with dyslexia. More information can be 
found at https://www.confettifilm.com/. 

B. 
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Monthly Financials 

Monthly financial data was viewed by board members. There was no questions or 
discussion. 

V. School Update 

A. Family Association Update 

A. Volpe gave the following report: the Family Association Meeting was held on 
October 4th; a "Trunk or Treat" event will be on October 24th from 10am-1pm in 
the parking lot near Building C at Petrides; there will be breakfast, pumpkin 
decorating, balloons, costumes, contests, raffles, Sundog Theater and trick or 
treating; Two book vending machines are now operational in our school sites -
coins and tokens earned by students can be used to purchase a book - students 
are excited about the vending machines. 
The next Family Association Meeting will be November 8th at 7pm. 

VI. Other Business 

A. New Business 

T. Castanza stated that the school's annual report will be finalized in November 
and the board will be notified before submission. 
L. Timoney reminded everyone that the next Board of Trustees Meeting will be 
November 17th at 7pm. 

VII. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:09 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
K. Baldassano 
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R. Kerr welcomed all participants and wished everyone a very Happy 
Thanksgiving, which can be shared with family and friends this year, unlike last 
year's holiday during the pandemic. 

II. Committee Reports 

A. Academic 

R. Kerr gave the following report: 
Tonight we will present the updated monthly dashboard. 
At the Academic Committee Meeting on 11/10/21 we learned that all classroom 
vacancies are filled; a SETSS teacher still has not been hired but internal staff has 
thankfully filled that void; CSE is not fulfilling their responsibilities in this area to 
provide services that are in our students' IEPs; there is also a severe backlog in 
OT services and RSAs were given to seek services in the community, but special 
needs parents cannot find available providers for services; PT is coming along, but 
we require the services of another social worker because our students with IEP 
counseling are being offered only remote counseling, and parents are declining 
those services as not being right for their child; the burden is coming back to the 
school and our counselors have to do crisis counseling, behavior counseling, etc.; 
we had a learning loss due to COVID in the last year and afterschool programs 
have begun to address that deficit; since September some bus routes and bus 
stops were not being assigned for some students, but with the assistance of 
school staff and the Borough President most of the busing problem has been 
resolved. T. Castanza added that there are still 10 students needing to be 
assigned to bus routes and 4 students needing IEP bus approval. 
R. Kerr then gave the floor to the Executive Director to review the dashboard data: 
T. Castanza reviewed the MAP data in Reading and Math at BOY (Beginning of 
Year): 

• Grade 1 Math: 50% at/above level; 40% 1 level below; same data for 
Reading 
• Grade 2 Math: 31% at/above level; 43% 1 level below; Reading: 29% 
at/above level; 44% 1 level below 
• Grade 3 Math: 25% at/above level; 38% 1 level below; Reading: 48% 
at/above level; 22% 1 level below 
• Grade 4 Math: 12% at/above level; 27% 1 level below; Reading: 22% 
at/above level, 18% 1 level below 

R. Kerr added that students scoring level 2 can be brought to level 3 with 
academic intervention or RTI to bring their scores up; when hired, the DTL can 
help with this. 
T. Castanza said this data is also used to group students for the afterschool 
programs to place focus on the students' weak areas. We can also differentiate 
students that are new to our school when we watch academic growth patterns. 
Today is only day 2 of the afterschool program; there will be a spring afterschool 
program (in February) and we can refer additional students to that program who 
need extra help. 
There is a lot of debate about Fountas & Pinnell (F&P) data and how helpful and 
meaningful it is; F&P data is helpful when we write IEPs; F&P data is not a 
measurable goal for our charter; we previously recorded F&P data only at the BOY 
and EOY (End of Year), but we will now have F&P data for MOY (Middle of Year) 
as well. 

• Grade 1 F&P: 29% at/above level; 57% 1 level below 
• Grade 2 F&P: 21% at/above level; 45% 1 level below 
• Grade 3 F&P: 4% at/above level; 48% 1 level below 
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• Grade 4 F&P: 8% at/above level; 63% 1 level below 

The last page of the dashboard is data on demographics: Total enrollment: 199 
students; 37% General Education; 63% Special Education; 97% Staten Island 
Residents; 3% Non-Residents. There is also breakdown by gender, by ethnicity, 
and data on daily attendance by grade level. 
The next Academic Committee Meeting will be December 8th at 9:15 AM. 

B. Executive 

L. Gyimesi gave the following report: At the Executive Committee Meeting on 
11/04/21 we had a presentation from Dan Pasek and Nora Clancy about Pasek 
Consulting LLC, a company which supports charter schools with renewal 
applications, authorizer reporting, charter changes, and board development. Most 
of the meeting was taken up with the presentation and the Q&A session that 
followed; we will vote tonight on a contract with Pasek Consulting to provide 
consulting for every stage of our charter renewal; there were some brief committee 
reports covered at the Executive Committee Meeting as well, details of those 
reports can be found in the minutes of the meeting. 
R. Kerr thanked L. Gyimesi for organizing the Strategy Meeting held on 11/11/21 
at the Petrides Science Center; it was very informative and well attended by 
members in person as well as remotely. 
The next Executive Committee Meeting will be on December 14th at 7:45 AM. 

C. Finance 

G. Winn thanked L. Gyimesi for the Strategy Meeting and thanked the board for 
honoring his late father with contributions to Doctors Without Borders. 
At the last Finance Committee Meeting held on 11/15/21, we clarified some of the 
bill paying processes and streamlining payment methods; in particular (based on 
previous bills and contracts) we discussed increasing the spending authority of the 
Executive Director from $5,000 to $7,500 without requiring a second signature; 
this will be brought forward for approval at the next board meeting; a Financial 
Policies & Procedures Manual is being reviewed by the Executive Director; we 
also discussed a compliance calendar - a draft is being worked on by the school 
now; it will be a tool to see the upcoming deadlines; we talked about the budget 
and beginning the budget cycle at least 2 months earlier; some of our contracts 
renew automatically when they expire and we want committees to look ahead at 
contracts coming up for renewal to make recommendations on the contracts in a 
timely way; starting now we need to address what is coming next year; a line of 
credit needs to be available - the Executive Director will recommend some ideas in 
December. 
T. Castanza added that a compliance calendar/tracker will be very helpful to meet 
our deadlines; a Boards of Cooperative Educational Services (BOCES) calendar is 
given to us in advance so we know what our reporting deadlines are. 
A Department of Youth & Community Development (DYCD) grant is being worked 
on now, $54,396 will be sent in 2 payments and will be applied towards 
professional development. 
The next Finance Committee Meeting will be December 13th at 4:30 PM. 

D. Hiring Committee 

T. Castanza reported that the Hiring Committee has been working on hiring a 
Director of Teaching & Learning (DLT) for several weeks due to vetting candidates 
we felt strongly about; we made an offer to a candidate and expect to have their 
answer within 48 hours Looking at what our school needs from our academic 
team, we found 2 really strong academic leaders to hire; we are excited to have a 
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leadership team with specialized instruction as a focus. In the next couple of 
weeks we will discuss this in greater detail. We are still looking to hire a SETSS 
teacher. We hired a fantastic social worker a month ago (Ms. Polacastro) who is 
very dynamic, with a focus on student negative behavior and the responses and 
causes of negative behavior; she has jumped right in with ideas about our 
behavior & discipline code to make it responsive to our students' needs. We want 
to hire an additional social worker to support this behavioral component and work 
with our academic team. 

E. ED Support & Evaluation 

L. Timoney reported that she will set up a trimester check-in meeting for ED 
Support & Evaluation for sometime in December on a date to be determined. We 
are working with Board on Track regarding the evaluation and everything is 
moving forward. 

F. Board Development and Governance 

L. Gyimesi thanked board members for coming together at the Strategy Meeting 
held on 11/11/21; it was very productive with energy and give & take which was 
great; we were able to focus on a vision for our school both for now and the future; 
we talked about what we want to accomplish, our plans and goals, and bringing on 
a consulting firm to assist with our charter renewal. The last Board Development & 
Governance Meeting on 11/04/21 was concerned with planning that Strategy 
Meeting and setting its agenda. 
She thanked Administrative Assistant K. Baldassano for creating an orientation 
packet for board members, which is now posted online in Board on Track. 
The next Board Development & Governance Meeting will be on December 2nd at 
8 AM. 

III. Votes 

A. Pasek Consulting 

A copy of the Pasek Consulting LLC contract was reviewed by the board. The 
contract is a 2.5 year agreement with a cost of $24,000 per year or $6,000 per 
quarter; they will assist with complete charter renewal submission (due August 
2023), manage all charter changes for implementation; assist with governance 
activities including ongoing strategic planning for current and future charter term, 
regular monthly check-ins with board renewal task force and board self-
evaluation/assessment if requested. This contract can be cancelled by either party 
within 30 days of billable quarter. 
The presentation they gave at the last Executive Committee Meeting was very 
informative. This company limits their management to only 25 schools at any time. 
L. Gyimesi made a motion to retain Pasek Consulting LLC to assist us with our 
charter renewal and approve the presented 2.5 year contract effective January 1, 
2022. 
M. Harmon-Vaught seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

IV. Executive Director Report 

A. ED Report 
T. Castanza gave the following report: Our annual report has been submitted; Title 
1, 2 and 4 grants have been submitted; we submitted additional documentation 
needed for our Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act 
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funding; compliance calendar/tracker is being worked on; website vendor is 
working with F. Ebanks and will be rolled out in December/January; the Strategy 
Meeting was wonderful and it was great to have the board members in the 
building; would like to have board members visit the school while in session; in 
December we are doing "Coffee with Castanza" at the school and would love to 
schedule it when board members visit. 

B. Monthly Financials 

V. School Update 

A. Parent Association 

In the absence of A. Volpe at tonight's meeting, T. Castanza said that the Family 
Association Trunk or Treat event was wonderful and well received. Families of 
upper grade students have been talking about middle school and there was a 
family meeting last Monday about transition to middle school. A. Volpe can update 
us on the outcome of that meeting when she is again present. 

VI. Other Business 

A. New Business 

L. Gyimesi stated that we need an update of our school's Code of Conduct & 
Complaint Policy; it needs to be tightened up and be vetted by our attorney, Susan 
Briggs to be compliant under the law. There are some things in the existing policy 
that are imperfect as there have been changes since it was created. Susan Briggs 
expects that the review of the entire policy and bringing it into compliance will take 
between 6-9 hours of work; regardless of the cost, this needs to be done. There 
are particular areas of concern regarding IEP students and we need to be 
compliant with ADA law, NYS law, etc. The Executive Committee members were 
aware that we were addressing this and the Executive Director will be approving 
payment for the attorney's services and working with her on this. The board 
members will be given the updated policy for approval at December's board 
meeting. 

G. Winn asked if people noted that in October, the JCC of Staten Island honored 
Rose Kerr for her many years of work benefiting children; under her leadership as 
founding principal of the Staten Island School of Civic Leadership, the school 
reached acclaim as the top-rated public school in New York City. He offered his 
congratulations to R. Kerr, who thanked him and said that it was a great honor 
because the JCC does so much for many schools on Staten Island. 

VII. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:09 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
K. Baldassano 
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Roll Call 
L. Gyimesi Aye 
A. Volpe Abstain 
M. Harmon-Vaught Aye 
M. Casale Aye 
R. Kerr Aye 
G. Kuriakose Aye 
G. Winn Aye 
F. Santarpia Aye 
L. Timoney Aye 

D. Welcome from the Chair 
R. Kerr welcomed the attendees and thanked everyone for their dedication to the 
school, students and board. She reminded everyone to review the meeting 
packets that are distributed before each board meeting; this month's packet 
contains a comprehensive overview of the authorization timelines; she thanked the 
Executive Director and his staff for putting together the timeline. Also, she 
emphasized reading the executive director's report each month, it is an informative 
overview which can help the board to keep our meetings moving forward. She 
wishes everyone a very happy holiday season and new year; remember our 
children during this time; there are many children who have real pain and sadness 
during this season. 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
R. Kerr added that as we end this year, we want to thank outgoing Borough 
President James Oddo for his support of our school and the many things he has 
done for Bridge Prep; BP Oddo and his team were involved in supporting our 
school even before our charter was written; he often speaks of Bridge Prep fondly; 
he is responsible for helping to site our school at Petrides and supported our 
expansion; for the record, we just want to say that we could not have done it 
without him; thank you, James Oddo. 
F. Santarpia stated that without Jimmy Oddo there would be no Bridge Prep 
school; he financed us and he fought for us every step of the way. 
T. Castanza added that he knows the Borough President is humble and does not 
want to draw attention to his good deeds, but he is our school's champion; we 
want to honor him at the school soon and show our thanks with a small token of 
our appreciation; he is welcome to visit at any time and we are looking forward to 
hosting him and celebrating the work he has done for Bridge Prep. 

II. Committee Reports 

A. Executive 

R. Kerr said that she does not think it necessary to cover the individual committee 
reports from the last Executive Board Meeting, since that information will be 
offered by each committee chair at tonight's meeting; instead she would like to 
move forward with tonight's report by the ED Support & Evaluation Task Force. 
The next Executive Committee Meeting will be January 11th at 7:45 AM. 

B. ED Support & Evaluation 

L. Timoney gave the following report on the ED Support & Evaluation Meeting held 
on December 8th to check-in with the Executive Director; they discussed key 
areas of focus for the ED this year and the paradigm shift of the ED taking the 
reins and driving the agenda for board meetings. We plan on having the official 
goals to the ED by next month; we will also be meeting next month with Board on 
Track to review the formal annual evaluation for the Spring. We will check-in with 
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the ED again in March to support him, see what he might need and keep the 
dialogue going. 
R. Kerr thanked L. Timoney and M. Harmon-Vaught for agreeing to work on this 
task force and to coordinate with Board on Track. 
M. Harmon-Vaught has agreed to co-chair this task force; he said he was excited 
to be engaged in this area; he added that one of the topics discussed last week 
was making sure that the ED reports given at board meetings are substantive and 
useful for ED, his team and the board; we may see some changes in the reports to 
make sure that they are most effective for what the board is trying to accomplish. 
L. Timoney added that we discussed interim reports from ED regarding what is 
happening at the school. 
M. Harmon-Vaught said there are 3 kinds of information that the board needs from 
the ED: 

1. How are we doing towards our goals (operational or budgetary) and what 
steps are being taken to meet those marks? 

2. What are the key issues or situations the board needs to know as 
fiduciaries in order to respond effectively? 

3. What is the good news about the school? (programs, events, things to 
celebrate); the good news we can share. 

C. Board Development and Governance 

L. Gyimesi reported that the following was discussed at the Board Development & 
Governance Committee Meeting of 12/02/21: a debriefing from the special board 
strategy meeting held in November and finalized goals reached at that meeting; 
creating a more structured approach to board development and lock down the 
fundamentals; create a "job description" that we can post online to reach out to 
more people and broaden our search; we'd like to make this an annual process 
and do a self-evaluation of the board's needs each year; Pasek Consultants will be 
coming on board in January and will be doing a monthly check-in with us; they will 
provide us with timelines, tips/hints regarding our charter renewal, so we can focus 
on academics; looking forward to working with the consultants; we also need to 
get all policies and manuals reviewed, updated and vetted by our legal advisor. 
The next Board Development & Governance Committee Meeting will be January 
13th at 8:00 AM. 

D. Finance 

G. Winn reported the following was discussed at the Finance Committee Meeting 
on 12/13/21: there are some things important to our planning of the budget cycle; 
as we look at the overall operation of the school from a compliance standpoint; the 
budget cycles begins in January for June 30th; ED and staff are developing a 
"compliance planner" containing a timeline on tracking deliverables; the Financial 
Policies & Procedures Manual was reviewed and is more effective than we 
thought it was. 
Regarding double signatures needed for purchases over $5,000, the board 
already approves contractual expenses over $5,000; the board can pre-approve 
those outlays in the beginning of the year for recurring expenditures, which then 
would not require an additional approval signature when repeated during that year; 
we discussed checks & balances regarding monthly expenses. 
L. Timoney spoke about the "Check Request" form being revised to show whether 
something is a contractual expense or non-contractual expense, indicating the 
approval budgetary amount for the expense, and what we've paid year-to-date, so 
that the person signing off on the expenditure will know more about the situation 
regarding the check request. These kinds of checks and balances will put tighter 
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controls in place. The ED will share the 3-5 year outlook also discussed at the 
meeting. 
The next Finance Committee Meeting will be January 10th at 4:30 PM. 

E. Academic 

R. Kerr & M. Casale gave the following report: the highlights of the Academic 
Committee Meeting of 12/08/21 are contained in the Executive Director's Report; 
review the ED report for more information on what was covered; we are looking 
forward to working with the new Director of Teaching & Learning (DTL) Christine 
Volpe, especially regarding data, meaningful use of data, significance of data and 
how to intervene using what data tells us; also what does data tell us regarding 
readiness for re-authorization by NYSED; this May we will have a NYSED mid-
level visit and report. 
M. Casale added that we really want the data to be about what goes on 
throughout the academic school day; data collecting will go on simultaneously with 
teaching and be concise so that it can be a natural extension of the learning day; 
collecting data can be a daunting task. 
The next Academic Committee Meeting will be January 12th at 9:15 AM. 

III. Executive Director Report 

A. ED Report 
T. Castanza will cover some of the bigger items in his report during monthly board 
meetings, but asks the board to read the entire report for specifics; we had a 
terrific ED Support & Evaluation Committee Meeting last week; we are moving 
forward and working well together; especially found the 3 points mentioned by 
board member M. Harmon-Vaught very helpful. 

• Goals: our actual goals are some we set for ourselves as well as 
assessment goals set by Regents; since we have no state assessment data 
right now, other academic goals are critical; our school will also be 
measured on non-academic goals; how we are progressing on each of 
those goals, what needs to change or adapt; NYSED will help us know what 
to adapt when they visit in May; we are also looking forward to working with 
Pasek Consultants on these goals. 
• Need to know: we had a different week than usual due to the effect of social 
media and how that impacts school safety; outside issues can affect us; 
pleased in how the school team reacted appropriately to a concern. Schools 
must complete 12 safety drills each year: 8 evacuation drills and 4 lock-
down drills; we have completed 8 of those drills as required by 12/31; we 
are handling these things well. 
• Good news: We know that this time of year can be difficult for children; we 
have a situation concerning the death of a parent of one of our students; 
our school team and social workers immediately responded to the family to 
offer help; our social workers stepped up; we are also participating this year 
with the local branch of the American Cancer Society to adopt the family of 
a pediatric cancer patient; our staff is contributing to purchase holiday gifts 
for the children of the family. 

Met today with R. Illuzzi to discuss where we are going, our external partnerships; 
our admissions launch; how we are doing outreach in the community; what types 
of events do we need to hold; looking forward to working with our new DTL, 
Christine Volpe, who will start working officially on January 3rd; Ms. Volpe will 
attend the OG refresh training in January led by Jill Edwards; Ms. Otterbeck will 
take on the role of Director of Specialized Instruction. 
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Attended Finance Committee Meeting with board member G. Winn to discuss 
where we are now and where we are going with our 3-5 year financial plan; this is 
also part of the charter renewal process; have been working with Josh Moreau of 
boostED Finance, our financial partner, and would like to have a special board of 
trustees meeting in January to review our financial strategies for now and in the 
future; we need to find out where we are before we make any decisions on our 
annual budget due June 30th; want to involve the board members fully in the 
planning of financial decisions. Further information to follow. 

B. Monthly Financials 

T. Castanza said the 3-5 year budget plan is our long-term finances; the monthly 
financials are the snapshot of where we are in a given month; we are looking at 
the format of monthly financial report; Josh Moreau and ED will be working on 
giving a clearer overview narrative and will revamp the first page of the monthly 
financial report; the report shows budget vs. actuals where we expect to be in a 
particular month and where we actually are; we have more of a surplus in 
November; we can use these savings for more professional development; to offer 
training to teachers before the NYSED visit in May; board of trustee members are 
invited to attend the training where they can learn about how data affects our 
goals. Looking forward to 2022. 

IV. School Update 

A. Parent Association 

A. Volpe met with the NYS Charter Parent Council on 12/06/21; spoke to National 
Parents Union and will meet monthly with both groups to discuss advocacy and 
how to organize charter school parents here and in Albany; the families of our 
school are donating money so we can purchase gifts and breakfast on 12/20/21 as 
a Holiday Breakfast event for the teachers at our school. 
R. Illuzzi added that next week is School Spirit Week; Tuesday, 12/21/21 is 
Pajama Day at school and also "PD with a Twist", a painting party for staff - board 
members are invited to attend. 
T. Castanza said that Parent/Teacher Conferences and report cards are being 
offered this week; teachers need a break and appreciate what the Parent 
Association does. 

V. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:06 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
K. Baldassano 
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therefore she was unable to vote. Board member A. Volpe was absent for this 
vote. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 

D. Welcome from the Chair 
R. Kerr welcomed all attendees and wished everyone a Happy New Year; thank 
you again to all who give of their time for Bridge Prep. COVID is still a big 
challenge for our school and families - we need to push on, although it's still very 
prevalent; day by day things are happening very quickly; thank you to the school 
staff for keeping it together; we want to avoid having to return to remote learning; 
we want to keep our children learning on-site. 

II. Committee Reports 

A. Executive Committee 

R. Kerr reported that the Executive Committee Meeting was held on January 11th; 
it was still early in the new year and the chairs of our various committees had not 
yet held their monthly meetings; what was discussed in that Executive Committee 
meeting will be covered tonight in the reports given by board members chairing 
those committees. 

B. Finance Committee 

G. Winn gave the following report: the Finance Committee Meeting was held 
today, January 19th; a presentation was given by Executive Director T. Castanza 
on the 5-year budget plan; it's preliminary but has an interesting format contained 
on one spreadsheet page; it looks at future growth and student population levels 
which are reimbursed to us by NYS per student; it contains information on 
potential surplus and governance budget; as we move into reauthorization, we will 
submit this budget plan to NYSED; we looked at our financial policy and 
procedures, contracts and compliance; followed-up regarding our audit and 
liquidity. Our audit was clean; we will probably vote on the budget in May instead 
of June this year. 
T. Castanza added that we are putting things together that are multi-use 
documents, a concise financial overview that we can use as a working document -
for example to see how a major purchase will affect us not only in the current year, 
but also in a future year. The budgeting calendar will impact all of us and all 
committees will have a role, i.e., with contracts. February's Finance Committee 
Meeting will cover a proposed fundraising plan with T. Castanza and R. Illuzzi. 

C. Board Development and Governance 

L. Gyimesi gave the following report: the Board Development & Governance 
Committee Meeting was held on January 13th; we are establishing a structured 
approach to board development; we will need to do a board evaluation - the 
evaluation questionnaire will be emailed to board members - please complete and 
return it before the next Governance Committee meeting on February 3rd; we are 
developing a job description and application to go out to potential board members; 
we want to encourage interest in our board of trustees; we need to decide what 
kind of board we want to develop; the Charter Renewal Task Force will have 
components on fundraising and public relations; Pasek Consulting will begin 
working with the task force and wants to give a presentation to our board on a 
date to be determined. 

D. Academic Committee 
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R. Kerr gave the following report: the Academic Committee Meeting was held 
today, January 19th; Our new Director of Teaching & Learning (DTL) Christine 
Volpe was given 2 weeks to get acclimated; OG training had to be postponed due 
to COVID; slowly but surely a strong academic team is being formed with C. 
Otterbeck and C. Volpe; we need to build on the structures already in place and 
enhance those structures. E.D. will give more information on the academic 
structures in his report tonight. 

E. ED Support & Evaluation 

L. Timoney reported that the E.D. Support & Evaluation Task Force met last month 
and has reached out to Board on Track for the next steps in the process and are 
waiting for them to get back to us. 

III. Votes 

A. NYSED Resolution on Enrollment 
L. Timoney made a motion to Approve a Revision of Year 3 Enrollment Figures. 
M. Harmon-Vaught seconded the motion. 
The following resolution was presented to the Board for approval: 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees of Bridge Preparatory Charter 
School approves an increase in the school's Year-3 enrollment from 190 to 195 
students in the 2021-2022 school year. 

Motion passed with 7 votes in favor, 0 against and 0 abstentions. Board 
member Maria Casale was present via audio only and not video conference, 
therefore she was unable to vote. Board member A. Volpe was absent for this 
vote. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 

Roll Call 
G. Kuriakose Aye 
L. Timoney Aye 
F. Santarpia Aye 
R. Kerr Aye 
M. Harmon-Vaught Aye 
A. Volpe Absent 
G. Winn Aye 
L. Gyimesi Aye 

IV. Executive Director Report 

A. ED Report 
T. Castanza gave the following update: Despite the challenges we had with 
COVID, we are excited to have a full school leadership team and academic 
leadership team; our new Director of Teaching & Learning (DTL) Christine Volpe 
started working at the school in the beginning of January and is exceeding all 
expectations; we are excited to have her as a partner on this journey. T. Castanza 
then introduced DTL C. Volpe to the board. 
C. Volpe said she is happy to be part of Bridge Prep and is extremely impressed 
with the day-to-day operations of the school; the systems that are in place - from 
busing to lunch to communicating with staff and families - are all working like a 
well-oiled machine; the school culture is warm and welcoming; it is apparent that 
the students and staff love each other; a curriculum team and data assessment 
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team are now in place; Francesco DiCanio has been very instrumental in 
supporting the DTL with the data; at the next board meeting, the DTL will present 
middle of year OG assessment and middle of year F&P assessment to the board. 
T. Castanza added that the DTL has done even more in her 2 weeks here; we 
have been talking about our charter renewal; all of our academic goals affect our 
renewal; how we are meeting our charter goals; getting ready for the state 
assessments and making sure that necessary accommodations for all students 
are in place for the March testing. 
R. Kerr added that regarding our IEP and testing accommodations, we've made 
strides in the last month, CSE is providing all mandated services, except SETSS, 
which we are doing at the school level; although they are not the best options, 
RSAs are also being given and we are in compliance. In addition, if the testing 
accommodations are not in place by January, then they may not be in time for the 
March testing. At today's Academic Committee Meeting we discussed the school 
working on the metrics for the merit salary increases for staff; formal evaluations 
are taking place; the DTL is working on those evaluations with T. Castanza and C. 
Otterbeck; the metrics of the Danielson Framework for teaching evaluation will be 
used to establish the tiered merit formula; more specifics will be given to the board 
next month. 
M. Casale thanked DTL for taking on the state assessment goals and asked her to 
make sure that the students' 504 testing accommodations are being put in place; 
sometimes students are not getting those 504 accommodations because parents 
don't know to ask for them. C. Otterbeck is working on getting the proper 
accommodations in place for all students. 
L. Gyimesi added that filling in the testing answer bubbles can be a critical issue 
for dyslexic children because the fill-ins don't seem to line up properly for someone 
with dyslexia. 
T. Castanza said students are offered RSAs but families don't always want them; 
we are trying to get more services offered in-school; RSAs for counseling are now 
available in-school. We want to work on this more in the future. The school 
leadership team met with Pasek Consulting this week to discuss what we want to 
get from our charter renewal; we are looking forward to working with Pasek; they 
will support us in the process but they need more information from us for a 
productive partnership with us; looking forward to the board meeting with Pasek. 
R. Kerr asked if Pasek knows that our school is special and can't be compared 
with other charter schools; NYSED can't be focused only on assessments. T. 
Castanza replied that Pasek is on the same wavelength as we are. 
Updates on community engagement, fundraising and outreach can be found in the 
printed E.D. Report given to the board members. There is a crop of newly elected 
city and local officials whom we will be inviting to the school in early February or 
early March; we want to engage with them and apply for some of the available 
discretionary funding. NYS Governor Hochul released her first proposed budget, 
there was no raise of the charter school cap; the per student allocation for charters 
has been increased 4.7%; NYS budget will be voted on in April. Our school's 
budget will be presented to the board over the next couple of months; NYSED 
wants to know how we are engaging with families, so we will send out a survey to 
families in February and again at the end of the school year; our admissions 
process has launched, our application format remains unchanged; we anticipate 
that we will have an admissions lottery this year, which will be held virtually on 
April 6th; a new strategy is to outreach by mail to individual schools in our district; 
we have gotten 26 admission referrals from other schools; we want schools that 
don't know us to learn about us; data indicates that we are starting to see more of 
our targeted students applying for admission; we are working with our legal 
counsel on modifications and adaptations to our Discipline Policy, Code of 
Conduct and Complaint Policy; NYSED wants community engagement related to 
the revision; our engagement includes feedback provided by our leadership team 
and student support team internally, a review by members of the board of trustees 
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and feedback from families via an upcoming Family Association Meeting; board 
members will receive a final draft version of the entire policy before the February 
board meeting. 

B. Monthly Financials 

T. Castanza reviewed the monthly financial report with the board; under Direct 
Education Expenses it seems as if we are not spending as much as we projected 
we would spend; this is targeted spending; now that C. Volpe is putting systems 
into place, such as professional development, spending on this line will increase in 
the next few weeks. These figures are approximately a month behind so this 
financial report is for the month of December. 

V. School Update 

A. Parent Association 

In the absence of A. Volpe, R. Illuzzi gave the following update: 
On January 29th, Bridge Prep will be partnering with Barnes and Noble to host our 
“Love of Literacy” event at Barnes and Noble for families, students and community 
members; 5% off all purchases made that day will be donated to Bridge Prep. 
World Read Aloud Day is coming up; we will give each child in the school the book 
"Aaron Slater, Illustrator" by  Andrea Beaty. Board members will be invited to 
school events via email by R. Illuzzi. 
L. Timoney remarked that it's nice to hear good news. 

VI. Other Business 

A. Governor Extends Legislation Allowing Virtual Public Meetings 

L. Timoney said that NYS Governor Kathy Hochul signed legislation on January 
14th extending virtual access to public meetings under New York State's Open 
Meetings Law, which allows New Yorkers to virtually participate in local 
government meetings during the COVID-19 pandemic. The law allows local 
governments to conduct meetings and hearings over online platforms like Zoom 
removing a requirement to hold those events in person. The new law will allow 
online-only meetings for as long as the state’s COVID disaster emergency lasts. 
This allows us to continue to meet remotely for board meetings. 

VII. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:01 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
K. Baldassano 
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Roll Call 
G. Winn Aye 
L. Timoney Aye 
L. Gyimesi Aye 
F. Santarpia Aye 
M. Harmon-Vaught Aye 
A. Volpe Abstain 
R. Kerr Aye 
G. Kuriakose Aye 

D. Welcome from the Chair 
R. Kerr welcomed the attendees and thanked everyone for their efforts on behalf 
of our students; she wishes everyone a restful week off to enjoy and refresh. 
With mixed emotions, we thank L. Timoney for her service, everyone knows what 
she's meant to this board; as a valuable and efficient Secretary to the Board, she 
was always there helping us to become a professional board; she is a founder of 
our school and for the record, we want to thank her; the board members agreed. 
She then gave the floor to L. Timoney. 
L. Timoney thanked the board and said that it's been wonderful; she has some 
challenges in her personal life and needs to take a step back and has resigned her 
position as Board Secretary effective February 9th; she will continue to be a board 
member and will serve on committees; she offered to help out in any way she can 
with the transfer of this position to the new Secretary, who will take her place on 
the Executive Committee. 

II. Votes 

A. Election for Secretary 

R. Kerr opened up the process for election of a new Board Secretary for the 
remainder of the term being vacated by L. Timoney. 
R. Kerr asked for any nominations for the position of Secretary to the Board of 
Trustees. 
L. Gyimesi nominated M. Harmon-Vaught for the position; this was 2nd by G. 
Winn. 
R. Kerr asked M. Harmon-Vaught if he accepts the nomination and he responded 
that he is honored to accept. 
R. Kerr asked if there were any other nominations; there were none. 
A vote was then called to elect M. Harmon-Vaught to the position of Secretary to 
the Board of Trustees. 
R. Kerr made a motion to elect M. Harmon-Vaught to the position of Secretary to 
the Board of Trustees for the remainder of the term of the previous Secretary. 
G. Winn seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

III. Committee Reports 

A. Executive Committee 

R. Kerr stated that an Executive Committee update would be redundant since 
each committee chair will report tonight on their committees and recap what was 
discussed at the last Executive Committee Meeting on 02/08/22; therefore we 
should move on to those reports. 

The next Executive Committee Meeting will be on March 8th at 7:45 AM. 

B. 

Powered by BoardOnTrack 2 of 5 



Bridge Preparatory Charter School - Board Meeting - Minutes - Wednesday February 16, 2022 at 7:00 PM 

Finance Committee 

G. Winn welcomed M. Harmon-Vaught to his new position and thanked L. 
Timoney for her service; he then gave the following report of the Finance 
Committee Meeting held on 02/14/22: the committee was given an update by E.D. 
on the budget; E.D. met with Josh of BoostEd, our financial management vendor; 
they plan to deliver a 1st draft of the budget to our committee on March 9th; they 
will focus first on staff-related expenses and head-counting, then move onto non-
staff related expenses, such as curriculum and programming. If you look at the 
financials for January, you will see a $98,000 variance tied to pupil revenue; which 
is due to a variance in pupil head-count which should not persist. We are also 
looking at risk management and cost of insurance; the partner we use is Gallagher 
and most of the risk has to do with our data protection; we will talk about this 
further in March or April when we will look at pricing of coverage. Fundraising is 
being done at the school. 

R. Illuzzi was invited to speak about school fundraising since she gave a 
fundraising update at the last committee meeting: In January, we raised $2,040; 
February we will be getting funds from our Amazon Smile partnership, but the 
amount is still unknown; in March we will hold the Barnes & Noble fundraising 
event; we have been asking for donations for our school's vending machines; and 
we have set up our Facebook tools to reach out to our community. 

The next Finance Committee Meeting will be March 14th at 4:30 PM. 

C. Board Development and Governance 

L. Gyimesi gave the following update from the Board Development and 
Governance Meeting held on 02/03/22: We continue to work on our structured 
development plan for the board; we are revising our trustee job description; we will 
start posting on some websites; if anyone wants to recommend someone to serve 
on our board, please let me know. We are also still awaiting the board evaluation 
results from 4 board members; we will be meeting again in early March and would 
like to discuss the results of the evaluations; Pasek Consulting would like to meet 
with our board again remotely sometime in March to discuss what we can expect 
from the charter renewal process; at this point we are about 18 months away from 
our renewal. We will set up a date for that meeting in the next few weeks. A 
question was raised on whether that meeting with Pasek Consulting could be 
considered a regular board meeting and it was determined that as long as the 
public is invited and the board has quorum for the meeting, it can be considered to 
be a regular board meeting. 

The next Board Development and Governance Meeting will be on March 3rd at 
8:00 AM. 

D. ED Support & Evaluation 

L. Timoney said that we are waiting to hear back from Board on Track regarding 
the Executive Director's Evaluation that they are creating for us. We should be 
hearing from them within a few weeks. 
M. Harmon-Vaught said that he will follow up with them. 

E. Academic Committee 

R. Kerr gave the following report on the Academic Committee Meeting held on 
02/09/22: 
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E.D. is on vacation, and DTL C. Volpe has been giving us academic updates in his 
absence; we covered a lot of content at our last committee meeting; she then gave 
the floor to C. Volpe: 

C. Volpe then reviewed the F&P data for literacy fluency and comprehension from 
the Dashboard; she compared the beginning of the year (BOY) data to the middle 
of the year (MOY) data; the percentage of students that experienced growth from 
BOY to MOY: 1st grade - 43%; 2nd grade - 31%; 3rd grade - 63%; 4th grade -
68%; she then reviewed the OG data for each grade; there is a disconnect in 
agreement between the F&P data and the OG data; moving forward we will make 
sure all teachers are trained in administering assessments; we have created a 
data assessment team; we will identify and prioritize OG skill pattern assessments 
for consistency; we are creating scheduling for next year to align F&P to OG; we 
are starting after-school Session 2 in February with smaller groups and we will 
group students by their skill level, not their grade; we will also set up groups for 
ELA & Math as well. NYS ELA exams will be on March 29th & 30th; Math exams 
will be on April 26th & 27th. We are preparing students for these tests and making 
sure that students who need accommodations will have them. We have been 
provided an additional OT and counselor to provide in-person IEP services to 
students. 
R. Kerr and E.D. met with David Frank, Executive Director of NYSED Charter 
School Office to discuss what has recently been in the news about DoE plans to 
open the first public school for dyslexic students since we already exist in that 
category and we seem to have been overlooked by the Mayor and Schools 
Chancellor; D. Frank was very supportive of the path we are continuing in working 
with the community. The District 31 Superintendent and Deputy Superintendent 
met with us to find a middle school solution for our 5th graders; this has not be 
established in any borough, so we are forming a task force with District 31 to 
create a model solution for this. 

The next Academic Committee Meeting will be March 9th at 9:15 AM. 

IV. Executive Director Report 

A. ED Report 
In the absence of T. Castanza, F. Ebanks gave the following Executive Director 
update: 

• We launched our “Show the Love” initiative, celebrating our success in 
different ways. NY1 came to visit our school last week and wrote an article 
on our "Show the Love" campaign, the S.I. Advance newspaper will be 
visiting us for a similar feature on February 14th. 
• We are starting Community Calls when members of our Leadership Team 
and Student Support Team will check in with a family of our school; 
• We participated in a successful Dine Out for Bridge Prep event sponsored 
by our Family Association; 
• We celebrated World Read Aloud Day by providing all students in the 
school with a copy of this year’s school-wide book, Aaron Slater, Illustrator 
by Andrea Beaty; 
• We launched the Bucket Filler Challenge, where classes are using Carol 
McCloud’s book "Have You Filled a Bucket Today? A Guide to Daily 
Happiness for Kids" to help students understand how rewarding it is to 
express kindness, appreciation and love by "filling buckets." Each class 
chooses a bucket filler of the month who will be celebrated across the 
school; 
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• We are marking our 100th Day of School on February 11th, we celebrate 
the amazing growth of our students and dedication of our staff. This year’s 
event will feature many “Fun-dred 
Days” activities for students 
• Our Love of Literacy event in partnership with Barnes and Noble will be held 
on March 5th 
• We have been working on revising our Discipline/Code of Conduct Policy to 
be legally compliant and a copy of the final draft of the policy has been 
shared with the members of the board; it will need to be voted on at next 
month's board meeting; all board members are invited to make suggestions 
on the policy via email to the E.D. before the March board meeting; 
• Our school's updated website is now live and has many new features 
including our monthly newsletter, The Bolt, along with the Bridge Builder 
Spotlight of 3 members of our school community; also a donations feature 
allowing people to make direct donations to our school online; 
• We are applying for city funding from our NYC Councilmembers for a 
Literacy Lab for our students; 
• Admissions update: at this time we have 67 applications for 49 available 
seats; we are sending letters to the local elementary schools inviting 
admission applications; we are sending out a direct mailing the week of 
February 21st; we will launch a virtual information session on our website; 
we will post a printed advertisement in S.I. Parent Magazine in mid-March; 
our admissions lottery will be on April 6th at 5 PM. 

B. Monthly Financials 

V. School Update 

A. Parent Association 

A. Volpe gave the following Parent Association update: 
There will be an ice skating event in February; we will sell flowers in April and hold 
a fun event in May; there will be a 4th grade parent meeting on March 10th. 

VI. Other Business 

A. Citywide Council for Charter Schools 

A. Volpe said that she reached out to the DoE office of Family and Community 
Engagement (FACE) and spoke to Dr. Melendez - asking why charter school 
parents can't participate in a city-wide parent council; having conversations with 
DoE about the necessity of allowing parents of charter schools to join such a 
council; our charter schools are impacted by DoE schools, but not ruled by them, 
and we believe charter school parents should have a voice. 

VII. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:04 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
K. Baldassano 
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G. Kuriakose seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

D. Welcome from the Chair 
R. Kerr welcomed all attendees and wished everyone a Happy St. Patrick's Day 
tomorrow. She stated that Frank Santarpia has resigned from the Board of 
Trustees due to returning to on-site work full time; he said remaining on the board 
would be challenging and he will be sad to leave such a wonderful group of 
people; R. Kerr thanked him for his service to the board and said he was an 
enormous help establishing our school site due to his liaison with the Borough 
President's Office; he was especially helpful in getting our school up and running 
when we didn't know if we would be given public DOE space or have to locate in a 
private space. 

II. Committee Reports 

A. Executive Committee 

R. Kerr said that much of the Executive Committee discussion will be covered by 
the committee chairs at tonight's meeting so she will not go into detail, but she is 
looking forward to this Saturday's presentation by Pasek Consulting and also 
anticipating the E.D. Support & Evaluation Committee update. 

The next Executive Committee Meeting will be April 12th at 7:45 AM. 

B. Finance Committee 

G. Winn reported that the Finance Committee met on March 14th and the 
following was discussed: 

• The school's annual tax return was completed and a draft was attached to 
tonight's agenda for review by the Board of Trustees; over the next few 
weeks, he welcomes questions and comments on the tax documents from 
the board; 
• E.D. is looking into the possibility of using a credit card instead of a debit 
card for incidental school spending; F. Ebanks is looking into the feasibility 
of this for a non-profit organization; E.D. is also looking into the 
appropriateness of using a debit card and getting clarity on the use and 
replenishment of funds of a debit card. 
• Our audit was clean and completed without any exceptions. 
• The first draft of the budget was reviewed and items discussed were 
program-related and staffing expenses; there are place-holders in the 
budget due to possible merit-pay salary increases but we do not have 
details on that yet; further information on the budget will be discussed at our 
April Finance Committee Meeting and full board meeting. We want to share 
the budget information as early as possible for board approval; final budget 
will be voted on at the May board meeting. 
• A brief discussion on the BoostEd contract; there is a automatic renewal 
term for the contract and there has been no significant changes, so the 
contract renewal is ready to go. T. Castanza stated that he would like to see 
the major contracts approved and in place before the final budget is brought 
to the board for a vote, so the budget can be as accurate as possible. 
• L. Timoney added that R. Illuzzi has amassed over $5,000 in fundraising; T. 
Castanza said that they worked with BoostEd to establish a process to 
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make sure that all donations are tagged properly and deposited into the 
appropriate accounts. This will make all future audits smoother. 

The next Finance Committee Meeting will be April 11th at 4:30 PM. 

C. Board Development and Governance 

L. Gyimesi reported that the Board Development & Governance Committee met on 
March 3rd and the following was discussed: 

• The Board of Trustees Evaluation Survey results are now in and have been 
shared with the board; this will be discuss in further detail later tonight; 
• The Board Member Job Description is completed and will be posted online 
after approval; 
• Pasek Consulting will be giving a virtual presentation on charter renewal 
this Saturday, March 19th at 8:30 AM, followed by a meeting of the Board 
Task Force on Charter Renewal. Pasek Consulting would like each board 
member to introduce himself/herself and speak briefly about their tasks. 

The next Board Development & Governance Committee Meeting will be April 7th 
at 8 AM. 

D. ED Support & Evaluation 

L. Timoney gave the following update: 

• The E.D. Support & Evaluation Committee will meet again with T. Castanza 
in April - when a date is established, the board will be notified. 
• Board on Track is finalizing the E.D. evaluation template and it should be 
posted online by March 28th. 

E. Academic Committee 

R. Kerr reported that the Academic Committee met on March 9th and the following 
was discussed: 

• The Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) data report was focused on: 
the interpretation and implications of the data; once we know what the data 
is telling us, what are the implications for instruction; what steps has the 
school taken from these data points; what are the trends and plans for next 
year; 
• We discussed planning for SETSS, academic intervention, curricula 
changes in Math; there is a direct focus on what the data tells us and what 
the teachers tell us. 

She then gave the floor to T. Castanza and C. Volpe: 

• T. Castanza said that the academic data is driving decisions for every 
leadership team member, which is how it should be; the data is telling us 
not only about our students academic progress but also the needs of our 
teachers; where we need to refine staffing and the need to engage our 
families; we have to do a better job of talking to our families about academic 
data; we will be sharing individual MAP data with parents; there will be 
training for teachers in MAP data later this week. MAP data is a good 
predictor of state assessments because it is nationally-normed and 
standards-based. 
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• C. Volpe is looking forward to the MAP professional development being 
given this Friday, devoted to how administrators and teachers can apply 
reports. She then reviewed the MAP ELA and Math data with the board 
members. She looked at the data to see what was happening with Orton-
Gillingham (OG) instruction; she found that teachers are not getting enough 
time to finish or get past the OG drills, so there will be an increase in the 
OG instruction time from 45 minutes to 1 hour and an additional support 
person will be added to take students most at risk and give them more 
intense OG instruction. 
• T. Castanza then reviewed and compared the data from Beginning of Year 
(BOY) and Middle of Year (MOY) for each grade in READING: 1st grade: 
34% showed growth; 2nd grade: 45% showed growth; 3rd grade: 76% 
showed growth; 4th grade: 61% showed growth. These results are on-target 
for the upcoming charter review. G. Winn asked where our school sits in 
relation to other schools taking similar tests. T. Castanza said we don't 
know because individual DOE district schools do not share their MAP data. 
• C. Volpe then reviewed the data from Beginning of Year (BOY) and Middle 
of Year (MOY) for each grade in MATH: 1st grade: 45% showed growth; 
2nd grade: 46% showed growth; 3rd grade: 82% showed growth; 4th grade: 
75% showed growth. We currently use a high-level Math program and the 
flow doesn't align to priority standards, so we will be working on curriculum 
mapping to meet priority standards first; she is also looking into a new Math 
program, the enVision Math Program has more visuals and might be better 
suited to our students. 

R. Kerr said that students come into our school significantly below level 
academically, so continuous significant progress is important. C. Volpe added that 
COVID also caused students to lose a lot of instruction time. R. Kerr responded 
that data/teachers/students/parents are all important cogs in the wheel of 
academic improvement. 

The next Academic Committee Meeting will be April 13th at 9:15 AM. 

III. Executive Director Report 

A. ED Report 
T. Castanza gave the following update: 

• Chancellor David Banks is scheduled to visit Bridge Prep on April 1st from 
10 AM-11 AM. He is expected to bring members of his team, as well as 
several elected officials; Board of Regents Member Dr. Christine Cea and 
David Frank from NYSED will also be here. Board of Trustee members will 
receive invitations to the Chancellor's visit after DOE submits further details 
to E.D. The Chancellor and guests will visit 2 classrooms: 1st grade and 3rd 
grade, followed by a parent roundtable discussion. 
• We are working on a process for transitioning our 5th grade students into 
District 31 middle schools with District 31 Superintendent, Dr. Marion 
Wilson and her team. Deirdre DeAngelis is also on this Middle School Task 
Force. We have a meeting and presentation on Monday night with 5th 
grade parents to discuss this and to get their feedback. 
• At this time we have 116 applications for admission for 49 available seats; 
the upper grades have very few available seats; the admission lottery will 
be held virtually on April 6th at 5 PM. 

B. 
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Monthly Financials 

T. Castanza reported that first draft of the budget is complete and was shared with 
the Finance Committee to be presented to the full board. We are planning now for 
the upcoming school year regarding space and facilities, capital improvement and 
specific orders needed. We will give further details to the board in April; we are 
also looking into purchasing technology, curriculum and additional furniture and 
want to have upcoming expenses in place by the end of May in time for the June 
30th budget deadline. 

IV. Votes 

A. Adoption of Revised Code of Conduct 
After discussion by the Board of Trustees, it was decided by mutual consent to 
table the adoption of the Revised Code of Conduct until board members could 
review the latest version of the Code. 
This item will be brought up again at the next Board Meeting on April 13th. 

B. Adoption of Revised Complaint Policy 

After discussion by the Board of Trustees, it was decided by mutual consent to 
table the adoption of the Revised Complaint Policy until board members could 
review the latest version of the Policy. 
This item will be brought up again at the next Board Meeting on April 13th. 

C. Revision to Trustee Job Description for Public Posting 

L. Gyimesi made a motion to Approve the revision to the Trustee Job Description. 
G. Winn seconded the motion. 
L. Gyimesi introduced a copy of the updated Trustee Job Description which will be 
posted online and used for recruiting purposes. After review of the document, a 
vote to approve was taken. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

D. Approval of FY22 Tax Return 

G. Winn submitted a draft copy of the Bridge Prep tax return IRS Form 990 for 
2020 to be reviewed by the board. It can be voted and approved by the board at 
an upcoming board meeting in April or May. The fiscal year closes on June 30th. 

V. Other Business 

A. Outcomes from the FY21-22 Board Assessment 
L. Gyimesi shared the Board Assessment Survey results with the board; the 
results show an overall score of 3 or Intermediate rating; board members asked for 
more training in areas of finance and academics. Further details on the survey 
results can be covered at the task force meeting after the Pasek Consulting 
presentation on Saturday, April 19th. That meeting will be open to the public and 
recorded on Zoom; Pasek Consulting will hold their presentation first, and then we 
will move into our task force meeting afterwards. Further information is on the 
meeting agenda sent to board members. 
A. Volpe said that the Family Association Report was omitted from the agenda and 
she will be brief since it is so late: 
The Family Association will be delivering food to the Calvary Assembly of God 
Food Pantry on Saturday. 

Powered by BoardOnTrack 5 of 6 



Bridge Preparatory Charter School - Board Meeting - Minutes - Wednesday March 16, 2022 at 7:00 PM 

VI. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:24 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
K. Baldassano 
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Approve Minutes 

M. Harmon-Vaught made a motion to approve the minutes from Board Meeting on 
03-16-22. 
A. Volpe seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

D. Welcome from the Chair 
Welcomed everyone and said she is grateful that the person who caused such a 
tragic incident in Brooklyn was apprehended; it makes us thankful for the safety of 
our families and our health. 
She welcomed the Ellen Rabin, a parent attendee to the meeting. 
L. Gyimesi added that a potential new board member may also be attending 
tonight's meeting. 

II. New Business 

A. Outcomes from the FY21-22 Board Assessment 
L. Gyimesi shared a document showing the results of the Board Self-Evaluation 
results and now wishes to go into further details; responses had to be stated in 
absolutes or by “I don’t Know” which could have resulted in lowering scores in 
certain areas. 
Basic Level 1 areas requiring significant improvement include: Board Meetings; 
Board Composition; Board Recruitment; Finance; Fundraising; Academic 
Oversight/Comparative Data; and Succession Planning. We need to grow our 
board; we have 8 board members and would like 11 members; we would like more 
involvement by E.D. in board recruitment; financial audits have never been a 
problem but the board needs more education on financial matters and academics. 
We are just beginning to get a strategy in place for fundraising; do we want to 
bring in people to help with fundraising? Succession planning is also needed. In 
other areas we did better: board meeting content; open meetings compliance; 
accountability; financial compliance; and support of the E.D.; we rated excellent in 
board structure and academic oversight. What are our board's plans and goals for 
the future? We have dedicated committees and are trying to move forward and 
improve in all areas. We need to decide what role we want to play in fundraising. 

III. Executive Director Report 

A. ED Report 
T. Castanza said he is encouraged by what he heard and he wants to focus on 
what's ahead; his printed E.D. April report was shared with the board; NYS ELA 
exams were on March 29th & 30th and kids did a fantastic job; the entire staff met 
afterward and were proud of the students pushing through and handling the test 
well; we also discussed what didn't go well so that we are better prepared for the 
NYS Math exams on April 26th & 27th; Science tests will be June 1st & 26th. 
We had a very successful visit by Chancellor Banks, Regent Cea, David Frank of 
NYSED Charter School Office, and a large group of other people on April 1st and 
we are pleased with how we showcased our school; we want to focus on the 
future, meeting our commitments to the state and forming new partnerships. 
We are now in the middle of budget season and our updated budget/version 2 was 
discussed in the Finance Committee Meeting; the full board will be given the final 
draft for a vote in May; we have targeted allocations based on student outcomes, 

Powered by BoardOnTrack 2 of 4 



Bridge Preparatory Charter School - Board Meeting - Minutes - Wednesday April 13, 2022 at 7:00 PM 

training of staff, and professional consultants, which will be put into a highlighted 
narrative for the board to review. 
Renewal of our charter to be discussed in May after the NYSED Mid-Term virtual 
visit, we are confident that we will do well; the visit has been pushed back to the 
end of May but we don't have a confirmed date yet. 
Our admission lottery was successful and we made offers for open seats; our 
retention formula adds to the number of open seats; we have a faster acceptance 
rate this year than ever before; 70% of the acceptances are for dyslexic students 
in our target population; Waitlist is 68 students at this time. Registration is next. He 
thanked his team for their hard work during this month. 

B. Monthly Financials 

T. Castanza reported that his team looked at the existing budget and upcoming 
budget and specific lines where we have not hit our target spending; we have 
additional funding available in professional learning, curriculum and materials; our 
Writing Revolution writing program will use funds for professional learning; and 
additional expenses exist for MAP professional development just held. 
An end-of-year analysis will be done of what funds were used, what fund not used 
can be moved into another area. This will all be presented to the board for 
approval before end of fiscal year on June 30th. 

IV. Votes 

A. Adoption of Revised Code of Conduct 
M. Harmon-Vaught made a motion to Approve Resolution #12: Revisions to 
School's Discipline Policy and Code of Conduct. 
R. Kerr seconded the motion. 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of Bridge Preparatory Charter School (“Bridge 
Prep”) deems it to be in the best interests of Bridge Prep that the following action 
be taken by the Board of Trustees of Bridge Prep pursuant to this Resolution: 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees of Bridge Preparatory Charter 
School approves the revisions made to the school's Discipline Policy and Code of 
Conduct to be implemented immediately. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

B. Adoption of Revised Complaint Policy 

M. Harmon-Vaught made a motion to Approve Resolution #13: Revisions to 
School's Complaint Policy and Procedure. 
G. Kuriakose seconded the motion. 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of Bridge Preparatory Charter School (“Bridge 
Prep”) deems it to be in the best interests of Bridge Prep that the following action 
be taken by the Board of Trustees of Bridge Prep pursuant to this Resolution: 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees of Bridge Preparatory Charter 
School approves the revisions made to the school's Complaint Policy and 
Procedure to be implemented immediately. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

C. Approval of Form 990 Tax Return 

G. Winn made a motion to Approve the School's 2020 Tax Return (Form 990) for 
Filing and Submission. 
L. Timoney seconded the motion. 
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The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

V. Public Comment 

A. Public Speakers 

The following parents of 4th grade Bridge Prep students spoke individually about 
how their children are thriving at the school, how much better their children are 
reading and socializing, how much better their children are doing at Bridge Prep 
vs. the other schools they previously attended, how amazing the experience of 
learning has become for their children and how much they appreciate the staff, 
teachers and administrators of the school. 
The parents also spoke about their fears for their dyslexic children attending a 
regular DoE middle school for 6th grade and that they are afraid that their children 
will regress. The parents all made the same request of the Board of Trustees: to 
support expansion of Bridge Prep to middle school with 6th, 7th and 8th grade 
classes so that their children can continue to attend Bridge Prep throughout 
middle school grades. 

SPEAKERS: 
Ellen Rabin 
Heather Thomassen 
Diane Spicer 
Amber Zick 
Karen Smith 
Amanda Wolowitz 
Joshua Sussman 
Bara Zahavi 

M. Harmon-Vaught thanked them for attending this virtual board meeting and 
speaking with us. 
R. Kerr thanked everyone for reminding us of who we care about and thought of 
when we founded Bridge Prep; we know what the school means to you. Some of 
our board members are founders of the school, and working along with former 
Borough President Jim Oddo, it took many hours and a lot of hard work to get our 
school established. 

VI. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:58 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
K. Baldassano 
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Call the Meeting to Order 
M. Harmon-Vaught called a meeting of the board of trustees of Bridge Preparatory 
Charter School to order on Wednesday May 18, 2022 at 7:02 PM. 

C. Approve Minutes from April Regular Board Meeting 

L. Timoney made a motion to approve the minutes from Board Meeting on 04-13-
22. 
R. Kerr seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

D. Approve Minutes from April Special Board Meeting 

M. Harmon-Vaught made a motion to approve the minutes from Special Board 
Meeting on 04-13-22. 
R. Kerr seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

E. Welcome from the Chair 
R. Kerr welcomed all the many remote attendee-guests; also a warm welcome to 
our NYSED Charter School Office Liaison, Kimberly Santiago who is with us 
tonight, we are pleased that she can be here and spend some time seeing how we 
conduct our business. A special welcome to our potential board member 
candidates, who will be introduced tonight by the Governance Committee. 
Welcome to the parents who are here as well. We have much to do in May and 
June, so let's continue on with our meeting. 

II. Committee Reports 

A. Finance Committee 

G. Winn reported that the Finance Committee met on May 10th; it was a quick 
meeting focused around the school budget; we had an update from the school 
leadership team on the 3rd draft of the budget, which is near completion. We 
expect to vote on the budget at our June board meeting. He was pleased to see 
that our executive team was able to respond quickly to the issues that they've 
seen on how we structure benefits, particularly the health care plan; a large part of 
what we do is supporting our human capital; the Finance Committee will look at 
some of the insurance contracts that we are supporting in our final budget and will 
make recommendations on them at our next meeting. Things are moving along 
and the E.D. can give further details in his update. 

B. Board Development and Governance 

L. Gyimesi reported that the Board Development & Governance Committee met on 
May 5th and discussed the change in the Open Meetings Law; she attended a 
meeting at the NY Charter School Center to become aware of the changes and 
how we need to comply; there will be a Board Development Meeting in June to go 
into details. Briefly, the former OML still applies and video-conferencing is allowed, 
however a quorum of members must be present in-person at a location where the 
public can attend and the video-conferencing member must claim "extraordinary 
circumstances" for not appearing there in-person. This can be done on a meeting-
by-meeting basis, as long as proper notice is given. We will need to adopt a 
resolution allowing this to happen; further details and explanations will be covered 
in our upcoming committee meeting. 
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She then introduced the potential board member candidate/guests at tonight's 
meeting and asked that they briefly speak; 

• Heba Nassef Gore, an attorney, a former ADA in the trial division in 
Philadelphia, dealing with violence and sexual assault of minors; she has a 
significant background in compliance and regulations as the Professional 
Standards Accreditation Manager at NYU; she was at NYU for 7 years and 
now works as a consultant for colleges and universities. 
• Jane McCord, Principal at PS 52, Staten Island for the last 21 years; prior 
to that she worked in other positions for the DoE and was an adjunct 
professor at NYU teaching post-graduate coursework on literacy for 
students with difficulty in learning to read; she hopes that her expertise and 
her good intentions will serve our community; she looks forward to working 
with the board. 
• Eric Shuffler, perhaps best known here as the President of the Staten 
Island Ferry Hawks minor league baseball team, but he has a storied career 
as a strategic consultant, has long been involved in community affairs and 
we welcome his ability to help guide Bridge Prep. He currently has COVID 
and will speak to the board for a few minutes from home. **Mr. Shuffler 
did appear later in the meeting and speak briefly; he said he was a past 
PTA President at both his children's schools and helped found a school on 
the Upper West Side with Jessica Jenkins; public schools matter to him, he 
said serving on this board is important because his 15 year old son is 
dyslexic. He knows how his son struggled in PS 199 and after changing to 
the Windward School for Children with Dyslexia his son learned coping 
skills and the school was able to help him thrive; his family now lives on 
Staten Island and he wants to be involved in a school like Bridge Prep to 
help make a difference. 
• Azalia Volpe, has been serving on our Board of Trustees as the Parent 
Association representative as President of the Association; however her 
term of president will be ending and her position on our board will also end. 
She is now seeking a new seat on the board. She is the parent of 2 
children, her daughter started at Bridge Prep in 2nd grade and everyone 
knows her commitment to Bridge Prep and its mission, specifically the 
children. She says she's a Mom by choice, a lawyer by training and an 
advocate because she had no other choice. She would welcome the 
opportunity to continue serving on the Board of Trustees. She sincerely 
believes in the mission of Bridge Prep and its continuation. 

L. Gyimesi thanked them for their interest in joining our board and we look forward 
to going ahead with the recruitment process. 

C. ED Support & Evaluation 

L. Timoney gave the following update: 
The evaluation surveys were completed by board members, school staff and the 
E.D. and have been collected and compiled; the results will be shared with the 
board after tonight's meeting. We will schedule a meeting sometime next week to 
go over the results and see how the evaluation looks; then we'll share the results 
with the E.D. and meet with him to discuss the evaluation and the goals for the 
new school year. We expect to have the evaluation process completed by our 
June deadline. 

D. Academic Committee 

R. Kerr reported that the Academic Committee met on May 11th and reviewed the 
academically related contracts that are up for renewal tonight, Sundog Theatre 
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and Edwards Orton-Gillingham/Literacy Live; the Academic Committee 
recommends that the board approve those contract renewals. 
T. Castanza and DTL Christine Volpe presented recent MAP data to the 
committee, which reviewed it for implication for instruction, for progress and for 
areas needing to be revisited for restructure. Importantly, it was Map data that 
came out of a recent broad-scale teacher professional development MAP program 
on how to use the data effectively day-to-day, which is key. E.D. and DTL will 
speak further on this tonight and she defers much of the academic update to their 
report. 

III. Executive Director Report 

A. ED Report 
T. Castanza gave the following update: 

• Welcome to our students' families who are virtually present at tonight's 
meeting; 
• Today Lightning Field Day was held at school; so proud of the school's 
Family Association, who raised over $9,000 in the last few weeks through 
donations and a "Fun Run"; he thanks them for leading the way in our 
fundraising efforts. 
• Welcome to the potential new board members, looking forward to 
introducing them to our school community; 
• Happy to see Kimberly Santiago, our partner from NYSED here tonight. 
• NYS Education Commissioner Betty Rosa and Board of Regents Member 
Christine Cea will visit Bridge Prep on Monday June 6th; and agenda is 
being finalized and further information will follow. 
• Our NYSED Mid-term Visit will be held virtually on Tuesday June 7, led by 
Kim Santiago, our NYSED CSO Liaison joined by Shenita Johnson, who will 
serve as the consultant for the visit; we will highlight our key design 
elements in everyday practices; a portion of the visit will include a meeting 
with students' families. NYSED will also virtually meet the Board of Trustees 
on June 2nd from 12pm-1pm; 
• We are still finalizing the end-of-year budget and will present that to the 
board in June. 
• We co-sponsored Dyslexia Awareness Day in Albany on May 12th; NYC 
Mayor Adams and Chancellor Banks announced changes in the DoE 
approach to supporting dyslexic students; this is wonderful news and 
highlights how important our work is; more students across NYC will get the 
chance to thrive like our Bridge Prep students with access to specialized 
instruction. 
• Contract extensions to be voted on at tonight's meeting: Sundog Theatre 
(Academic), BoostEd Finance (Financial), Edwards Orton-Gillingham 
(Academic). 
• Student Registration is in full swing; we held a few in-person registration 
days and aim to have all students registered by the end of June. 
• Thanked F. Ebanks for working with him on space planning; we continue to 
evaluate our space needs for the upcoming school year working with our 
DoE partners on our shared campus; met with NYC DOE Office of Space 
Planning and Campus Governance on May 13th to discuss space 
allocations and changes, as well as the updated policies around Campus 
Governance; we will establish a Shared Space Committee starting in 
September, comprised of school administrators, teachers and parents; 
• We created a draft school calendar for the 2022-2023 school year but are 
awaiting the NYC DOE calendar to be released in mid-June. 
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• We've began to identify students that may benefit from our summer school 
programs; we applied for the $75,000 Bloomberg Philanthropies’ new 
Summer Boost NYC program and are waiting to hear back; if we receive the 
funds, we can double the number of students in the summer program and 
increase the amount of days (50 students for 24 days) from July 5th-August 
5th from 8am-1pm. 
• Further updates can be read in the E.D. update report submitted to the 
board. 

At this point, he gave the floor to Christine Volpe, the Director of Teaching & 
Learning to discuss academic data: 
Professional development was held to show teachers and staff how to use MAP 
data; not only to look at the data but also how to take meaning from the data; how 
teachers can use the data everyday in their classrooms. 
C. Volpe reviewed the MAP Growth Data and shared the chart with the board; the 
data indicates that all grades have shown improvement, with grades 3 & 4  
exceeding national grade level norms; we are looking forward to seeing the results 
of this year's ELA & MATH tests. 
R. Kerr emphasized that the 3rd and 4th grade students have been at Bridge Prep 
the longest and have gotten OG lessons all along; it shows how our curriculum is 
working; she wants to congratulate the students and families. 

B. FY23 Budget Discussion 

T. Castanza reviewed the budget process and the budget narrative. Budget was 
discussed at the last Finance Committee Meeting and many board members were 
there; received good feedback from the board on the budget narrative. 

Fiscal Year 2023 (FY23) Budget Narrative highlights: 
The priority areas to allocate funding and assure organizational success include 
#Organizational retention and staff continuity critical for the success of 
students and staff; 
#Staff support & professional learning in areas of strength & those with 
opportunities for growth; 
#Increased staff headcount to accommodate the final phase in of our currently 
approved grade span; 
#New, responsive benefit offerings to support staff financially, as well as make 
them feel valued, such as reducing health benefit costs and student loan 
reimbursements; 
#Enhancement of the student experience through funding for additional 
programming, events, materials, trips and extracurricular programming; 
#Organizational advancement, through new targeted partnerships, an early 
launch of the student recruitment process. 

The budget was developed conservatively in its approach to revenue, while being 
robust as it relates to expenses. Revenue in the budget is primarily driven by Per 
Pupil funding based on allocations from NYS. Student enrollment projections in 
the budget account for 230 students. After accounting for all projected expenses 
and with a conservative approach to projecting revenue, this budget will provide 
the organization with a significant and strong Operational (Net) Surplus of 
$1,822,683 and an ending Cash Balance (Reserve) of $5,872,588. 

The budget shows us in a strong financial position, able to accommodate the need 
for additional expenses, needs and strategic planning choices. We could expect 
additional revenue in the form of up to 12 additional students, which the school is 
able to serve and has enrolled to date. This additional revenue will result in an 
increase to the school’s Operating (Net) Surplus. 

C. 
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Monthly Financials 

T. Castanza reviewed the monthly financials with the board, looking at the June 
amounts, and actual vs projected expenses; some amounts can be rolled over to 
the next budget as cash reserves. 

IV. Votes 

A. FY23 BoostEd Contract Extension 

G. Winn made a motion to approve the extension of the BoostEd contract for 1 
year, from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 under the same conditions as previously 
agreed upon. 
L. Timoney seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

B. Sundog Theatre Arts Program Agreement 
M. Harmon-Vaught made a motion to approve the Sundog Theatre agreement to 
provide the arts discipline of drumming during school hours in the form of 13 total 
classes/week in a residency to continue for 34 weeks. 
A. Volpe seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

C. Literacy for Life Proposal FY23 

M. Harmon-Vaught made a motion to approve the Literacy for Life/Edwards Orton-
Gillingham training and coaching program (Option 1) ongoing during 2022-2023. 
R. Kerr seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

V. Family Association Update 

A. Family Association Update 

A. Volpe gave the following Family Association update: 
The "Fun Run" was able to raise $9,119 and we are very proud of the 
accomplishment as we were only hoping to reach $4,500. 
On June 12th the 2nd Annual Family Fun Day will be held at the Carousel For All 
Children in Willowbrook Park from 12pm to 6pm. The carousel has been reserved 
for our students' families to enjoy. Of course, board members are also invited. 
She then yielded her speaking time to the people waiting to speak during public 
comments. 

VI. Public Comment 

A. Public Comment 
The following parents of Bridge Prep students spoke to the board about their wish 
that the school grades be extended to 6th grade and middle school so that their 
children can continue to thrive at Bridge Prep. They feel very strongly about this 
and don't trust that the DoE will support their children. They are afraid that their 
children will fall behind and lose self-esteem if they attend a DoE district middle 
school. 

• Diane Spicer, 4th grade parent 
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• Heather Thomassen, 4th grade parent 
• Azalia Volpe, speaking as a parent of 2 students 
• Karen Smith, 4th grade parent 
• Joshua Sussman, 4th grade parent 
• Donna LaCicero, 4th grade parent 
• Amanda Wolkowitz, 4th grade parent 

R. Kerr thanked all the families who spoke so candidly. We hear you. 
The Executive Director and Board of Trustees is planning a parent/family meeting 
in the very near future to hear more details of your concerns and questions and to 
listen to your pleas. Those of us who are parents - or not parents - do feel you. 
The E.D. will lead the meeting and will discuss the possibilities, how authorization 
works, the potential for grade expansion, NYSED policies and timelines for such 
things. We want to bring you up to speed and let you know further that we do care. 
Thank you for acknowledging the hard work that the school does every day and 
the fact that your children are happy and prospering makes it all worth while. We 
will see you very soon. Thank you. 

T. Castanza responded that we are working on setting up a date in early June for 
the parent meeting. To all the parents on this video-conference, you know that 
your kids are our kids, and I have made the promise to you that we will not let 
them go anywhere without a plan; whatever that plan looks like, I promise you that 
there will be ample time to make the process personalized. You have met the 
board, you know our staff, you know our team, we're there every day; I see some 
of our teachers on this video-conference who see your kids every day and care 
about every one of them. We are getting your emails and hearing your concerns; I 
give you my word that this process will be everything that we can make it be to 
assure their continued success. We are very proud of their success and we want 
that to continue. 

R. Kerr added that our understanding will continue; we will meet very shortly so 
that you know you are supported with more than just head-nodding on a Zoom 
call; we want you to feel really supported and we get what you're saying; it's all 
about love of children. We are there for you and will hear from you in person very 
soon. 

M. Harmon-Vaught thanked the parents; anyone to whom you entrust your 
children has a duty and it's wonderful to hear how much your children are thriving 
at Bridge Prep; it's a wonderful place. As a non-founding board member, he is so 
pleased to join this community where we have parents who are engaged, board 
members who are engaged, a school staff who are so invested in everything for 
our Bridge Prep kids. 

VII. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:24 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
K. Baldassano 
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Call the Meeting to Order 
M. Harmon-Vaught called a meeting of the board of trustees of Bridge Preparatory 
Charter School to order on Wednesday Jun 15, 2022 at 7:03 PM. 

C. Approve Minutes from May Board Meeting 

M. Harmon-Vaught made a motion to approve the minutes from Board Meeting on 
05-18-22. 
L. Timoney seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

D. Welcome from the Chair 
R. Kerr welcomed the attendees to the last board meeting of this school year; she 
asks for some additional time to speak a little later in this meeting; but now let's 
move on. 

II. Committee Reports 

A. Academic Committee 

R. Kerr stated that she will defer her Academic Committee report to E.D. T. 
Castanza and DTL C. Volpe to present student data and other academic items. 

T. Castanza reported that C. Volpe will cover end-of-year data, but first he wishes 
to speak about some recent academic achievements: 

• NYS Assessments - we have completed our first round of state 
assessments: ELA, Math and Science, which has a hands-on component; 
our 4th grade team did a wonderful job prepping the students for that 
Science exam; 
• Summer School - we received funding from the Bloomberg Philanthropies’ 
new Summer Boost NYC program to cover our newly expanded summer 
school for 50 students over 24 days (from July 5-August 5); he thanked C. 
Volpe for her assistance in applying for the funding. 
• End-of-Year Data - we've completed aggregating the end-of-year MAP 
data, and will hopefully receive the NYS assessment data in time to be 
compared and reviewed at the August board meeting. We are starting see 
how data points sync and intersect with each other and tell us the same 
results. 
• Professional Learning - we are creating a calendar of professional 
learning opportunities for teaching staff this summer; starting August 22; the 
plan includes staff-wide training in The Writing Revolution, PowerSchool, 
our new math program, Envisions Math, a supplementary math program 
known as Multisensory Math, The Leader in Me School Culture Program 
and a Conflict Management and Resolution Workshop; he will be presenting 
school policy and vision for the upcoming school year; the 5-day OG 
training is being held in September. 

R. Kerr asked if C. Volpe would speak about the F&P (Fountas & Pinnell) data and 
what it represents. C. Volpe reviewed the MAP data: 

• Fountas & Pinnell data measures fluency and comprehension of reading. 
She added that we've seen a lot of growth this year in OG (Orton-
Gillingham) data and F&P (Fountas & Pinnell) data; all grades showed 
growth in the groups reading at or above grade level; she then reviewed the 
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data for each grade level comparing the beginning-of-year (BOY), middle-
of-year (MOY) and end-of-year (EOY) data; she referred to a printed chart 
of the MAP data for board members to review during this meeting. 
• Highlight of OG data: we see mastery and growth in most skills in all 
grades; 90% of 1st graders have reached benchmarks for sight words and 
that's huge; 4th graders mastered 13 out of 15 skills during this year; we 
know that the OG skills are being applied into their reading and 
comprehension. 

R. Kerr added that there were 2 successful visits to Bridge Prep this month; one 
on June 6th from NYS Education Commissioner Betty Rosa and Board of Regents 
member Dr. Christine Cea, everyone pitched in and the visit went well; The other 
was the NYSED mid-term visit on June 7th. It was a big week for our school. E.D. 
will give more details during his report later in this meeting. 

B. Finance Committee 

G. Winn reported that we have a finalized budget to be approved by the board 
tonight; it took a lot of work; he thanked F. Ebanks and everyone who helped; he 
then gave the floor to the E.D. to review the budget highlights. 

T. Castanza also thanked everyone who was involved in establishing the school's 
budget, which was gone through line-by-line at a previous meeting; he submitted 
an updated budget narrative to the board highlighting the following points: 

• The budget is conservative with revenue, while being robust with expenses 
for both now and the future. 
• Revenue is driven by per pupil funding from NYS along with Special 
Education Funding from both the state and federal government, as well as 
grants. 
• This budget will provide the school with a strong operational (Net) surplus of 
$1,631,130 and an ending cash balance (Reserve) of $5,779,278. 
• The budget shows us in a strong financial position. 

Highlighted Expenses Included in Budget: 

• Organizational retention and staff continuity - Each full- time employee 
returning for the upcoming school year will receive a $1,500 re-sign stipend, 
paid out in two $750 increments (September and April). Funding was 
allocated based on feedback from staff on specific additional benefit 
offerings, such as a new less-costly HR services provider that would give 
savings for both the individual employee and the school; the budget also 
has funding of $50,000 allocated for “Additional Fringe Benefits” such as 
increased defined contribution cost towards health benefits or support for 
student loan repayment & academic advancement expense, a program that 
would provide each employee with a set monthly amount to support the 
payment of either a student loan (self or parent pay) or qualified academic 
expense. 
• Staff Support & Professional Learning -With the exception of staff 
salaries, staff support and professional learning accounts for the majority of 
budgetary funding 
• Increased Staff Headcount - Funding for salaries of new staff members to 
help complete the phase-in of 5th grade; all vacancies at this time are for 
new hires & are labeled TBD in the budget. 
• Enhancement of the Student Experience - Funding has been allocated to 
improve the experience for our students, such as field trips, student 
activities, athletics, after-school programming, new classroom furniture, 
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technology and equipment. Increased funding for student recruitment and 
retention. 
• Cost of memberships, Dues & Miscellaneous Expenses - Our 
participation in/with organizations/partners that will support our growth and 
expand our footprint in the community. 
• Grant Writing/Support - Funding includes both Pasek (support with 
Renewal) and Bill Brinkman, who supports the writing of our Title grants. 
• Professional Consultants - Funding of $180,000 has been allocated to 
account for additional support with charter renewal and expansion planning 
• Board of Trustee Expenses - Funding has been included to account for 
Board on Track, the BOT Administrative Assistant and additional BOT 
expenses throughout the fiscal year. 

A board vote on the budget at tonight's meeting allows the Finance Committee to 
give approval to the E.D. salary which will be determined after completion of the 
E.D. evaluation later this month. 
The date of the next Finance Committee Meeting is TBD. 

C. Board Development and Governance 

L. Gyimesi thanked the Board Development and Governance Committee 
members; we have started the process of welcoming 4 new Board of Trustee 
members and 2 additional candidates may be joining the board later this year. 
Annual review of the Board of Trustee bylaws was done and small bylaw changes 
regarding term limits will be brought before the board for a vote tonight. 

D. ED Support and Evaluation 

M. Harmon-Vaught stated that the E.D. Evaluation Committee will meet again this 
month to finalize the evaluation at a date which is convenient for the board 
members. 
L. Timoney added that Board on Track, that has been working with the board on 
the E.D. evaluation has sent a $100 Amazon gift card as a thank you; the board is 
donating the gift card to the school. 

III. New Business 

A. Summer 2022 Board & Committee Meetings 

A general discussion was held regarding whether the Board of Trustees will hold 
board meetings in July and August; the general feeling seems to be leaning 
towards no July board meeting, with the next board meeting in August. This year 
the board has already held more than the minimum of twelve (12) public meetings 
as required in the board's bylaws, so summer meetings may not be necessary. 
A. Volpe said she was concerned about not holding a meeting in July because 
summer school will be held at the school for the first time and it's important to have 
a check-in to see how summer school is going. 
R. Kerr responded that the Academic Committee will be on-site and continue to 
meet with DTL C. Volpe this summer regarding summer school and to prepare for 
the upcoming fall curriculum. 
G. Winn asked if we need to make a decision immediately on whether to have a 
July meeting or can we wait to see what might come up? 
Since there is so much still to cover at tonight's meeting, the board agreed to table 
this discussion until later in the meeting and to get on with the business of 
elections and approvals of various items on the agenda. 

B. 
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Statement by R. Kerr, Chair of Board of Trustees 

R. Kerr said that when Bridge Prep was started, she was chosen as Chair of the 
Board due to her on-site, in-school administrative experience as a retired school 
principal. Now that the school has moved on and developed she feels it is time to 
plan for succession for the sake of the children; she said she will not seek to be 
Chair, but she will remain on the board as a trustee and she will remain as co-
chair of the Academic Committee with board member Maria Casale. She's looking 
forward to the new people coming onto the board; she wants to say thank you to 
the board; it has meant a lot to her; the board members and school staff are 
extraordinary and she wants to say thank you to her colleagues on the board and 
to the school leadership and the parents and students of the school. 

C. Election of Chair of Board of Trustees 

R. Kerr nominated L. Gyimesi as Chair of the Board of Trustees. 
There were no other nominations. 
L. Gyimesi accepted the nomination. 

M. Harmon-Vaught called for a vote on this nomination: 
RESULTS OF VOTE: 8 YES; 0 NO; 0 ABSTENTIONS 

L. Gyimesi is unanimously elected Chair of the Board of Trustees 

D. Election of Vice-Chair of Board of Trustees 

M. Harmon-Vaught stepped aside and R. Kerr took the floor as Chair for this 
nomination and vote. 
L. Gyimesi nominated M. Harmon-Vaught as Vice-Chair of the Board of 
Trustees. 
There were no other nominations. 
M. Harmon-Vaught accepted the nomination. 

R. Kerr called for a vote on this nomination: 
RESULTS OF VOTE: 8 YES; 0 NO; 0 ABSTENTIONS 

M. Harmon-Vaught is unanimously elected Vice-Chair of the Board of 
Trustees 

E. Election of Secretary of Board of Trustees 

M. Harmon-Vaught nominated G. Kuriakose as Secretary of the Board of 
Trustees. 
There were no other nominations. 
G. Kuriakose accepted the nomination. 

M. Harmon-Vaught called for a vote on this nomination: 
RESULTS OF VOTE: 8 YES; 0 NO; 0 ABSTENTIONS 

G. Kuriakose is unanimously elected Secretary of the Board of Trustees 

F. Election of Treasurer of Board of Trustees 

L. Gyimesi nominated G. Winn as Treasurer of the Board of Trustees. 
There were no other nominations. 
G. Winn accepted the nomination. 
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M. Harmon-Vaught called for a vote on this nomination: 
RESULTS OF VOTE: 8 YES; 0 NO; 0 ABSTENTIONS 

G. Winn is unanimously elected Treasurer of the Board of Trustees 

G. Re-Election of Board Member Maria Casale to a Second 3-Year Term 

As per ARTICLE III, C (4)(b) of the Bridge Prep Board of Trustees Bylaws, Maria 
Casale’s first 3-year term of office as a Trustee is now expiring. 

L. Gyimesi nominated Maria Casale to a second 3-year term as a Trustee effective 
immediately. 

M. Harmon-Vaught called for a vote on this nomination: 
RESULTS OF VOTE: 8 YES; 0 NO; 0 ABSTENTIONS 

Maria Casale is hereby unanimously elected to her second 3-year term as a 
member of the Board of Trustees. 

H. Election of A. Volpe to Fill the Board of Trustee Vacancy Created by the 
Resignation of F. Santarpia 

L. Gyimesi nominated A. Volpe to fill the vacancy created by the resignation of F. 
Santarpia. 
A. Volpe accepted the nomination. 

NOTE: A. Volpe was previously a member of the Board of Trustees in her position 
as President of the Family Association; her position with the Family Association 
ceases effective June 2022. As per ARTICLE III, C (4)(b) et seq. of the Bridge 
Prep Board of Trustees Bylaws, she is now eligible to serve as an elected Trustee 
on the Board. 

M. Harmon-Vaught called for a vote on this nomination: 
RESULTS OF VOTE: 8 YES; 0 NO; 0 ABSTENTIONS 

A. Volpe is hereby unanimously elected to be a member of the Board of 
Trustees. 

IV. Executive Director Report 

A. ED Report 
T. Castanza thanked the Board of Trustee members for their work throughout the 
year; this year we can highlight what we've accomplished over the last 3 years. 

• We were visited by NYS Education Commissioner Betty Rosa and Regent 
Dr. Christine Cea on June 2nd including classroom visits and interactions 
with students and staff; it was a successful visit; Commissioner Rosa knows 
a lot about our school. Some of her recommendations included an 
emphasis on early childhood education and literacy (Pre-K and 
Kindergarten); the identification of a higher education partner to develop a 
student teacher residency and to support areas such as research-based 
practices and content specific training (she specifically highlighted 
Manhattanville College, which is a NYSED partner university); 
our possible status as a Professional Learning Support School, for grades 
2-3, which would come with funding - we are seeking clarity on this and will 
provide more details later. 

Powered by BoardOnTrack 6 of 9 



Bridge Preparatory Charter School - Board Meeting - Minutes - Wednesday June 15, 2022 at 7:00 PM 

• NYSED remotely visited our school on June 7th; we had prepared for their 
visit by looking at our charter so we could highlight our key developments 
throughout the school building; we have not yet gotten feedback from 
NYSED on that visit and we don't know when it will be forthcoming. They 
had a lot of academic questions for us; NYSED met with parents and we 
believe the visit went well. R. Kerr added that the purpose of the visit was to 
give us feedback to prepare for our charter renewal request; to tell us what 
they want to see for our charter reauthorization. 
• A special thank you to R. Kerr for her work as Chair of the Board; he is 
grateful for her guidance and he said he learned a lot from her. 

B. Monthly Financials 

V. Votes 

A. FY23 Budget 
L. Timoney made a motion to approve the FY 2023 budget for Bridge Prep Charter 
School as presented to the Board of Trustees. 
A. Volpe seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

Roll Call 
M. Casale Aye 
L. Timoney Aye 
G. Winn Aye 
M. Harmon-Vaught Aye 
A. Volpe Aye 
L. Gyimesi Aye 
G. Kuriakose Aye 
R. Kerr Aye 

B. Insurance Renewal 
M. Harmon-Vaught made a motion to approve the Summary of Insurance 
Coverage for 2022-2023 as presented to the Board of Trustees. 
A. Volpe seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

C. HR Services Contract 
M. Harmon-Vaught made a motion to approve the ExtensisHR Client Service 
Agreement effective July 2022 as presented to the Board of Trustees. 
G. Winn seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

D. School Technology Services Contract 
M. Harmon-Vaught made a motion to approve the Tech Support Services 
Agreement from edIT Support Technology Services effective 07/01/22 as 
presented to the Board of Trustees. 
L. Timoney seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

E. Proposed Amendment to Bylaws 
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L. Gyimesi made a motion to approve the amendments to the Board of Trustees 
Bylaws, ARTICLE III, C (4)(b) et seq. as presented to the Board. 
R. Kerr seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

VI. Family Association Update 

A. Family Association Update 

A. Volpe said this is her last board meeting as President of the Family Association 
and she thanked the board members for having her; she will continue on the board 
now as an elected Board Trustee; the Family Association held a Family Fun Day 
on Sunday, June 12th in Willowbrook Park and in spite of the rain, people showed 
up and had a wonderful time; NYS Charter Parent Council has recognized her as 
a Parent of the Year. 

She introduced Amanda Wolkowitz, the new President of the Family Association; 
A. Wolkowitz spoke briefly about her children who attend Bridge Prep and how 
much she appreciates the school and its staff; she said there are many Family 
Association events being planned for next year and she is looking forward to 
working with the board members. 
R. Kerr reminded everyone that earlier tonight, the discussion and decision about 
whether to hold a Board of Trustees Meeting in the month of July was tabled; she 
asked if there is consensus now on this topic and if board members are willing to 
eliminate the July meeting; based on the board's positive response, and there 
being no objection from any member, the board agreed by general consent that 
the July full board meeting will not be held. She added that any committee that 
wishes to meet in July may certainly do so. 
T. Castanza said he would send the board members a July E.D. update to keep 
everyone in the loop. 
L. Gyimesi said that the term of founding board member L. Timoney is ending and 
she has chosen not to run for a seat to remain on the board. She thanked L. 
Timoney for her vision in forming Bridge Prep, her commitment to the parents of 
Staten Island and their children; the many tasks she has performed to make 
Bridge Prep a success; her leadership, her passion and compassion will be sorely 
missed. 

T. Castanza then spoke about how Bridge Prep would not exist if it weren't for the 
efforts of L. Timoney; much of what we've accomplished could not have happened 
without her; he said she truly is a "bridge builder" on behalf of the school, he 
thanked her for everything she's done for Bridge Prep and he presented her with a 
bridge model. 

L. Gyimesi then thanked R. Kerr for her depth of knowledge and vision and is 
thankful that she is staying on the board; for her efforts in leading the board and 
her attention that helped make Bridge Prep what it is today; luckily she has agreed 
to stay on the board as we try to move forward without her at the helm. 

M. Harmon-Vaught said he wanted to echo the gratitude for L. Timoney; she and 
R. Kerr were the first people he spoke to before he even moved to Staten Island; 
he is grateful for her example, her partnership and the vision that she brought 
which is why we are all here. She will still be reachable at the Borough President's 
Office but needs to spend time at home. 

VII. Closing Items 

A. 
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Adjourn Meeting 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:17 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
K. Baldassano 
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                                                                                     Statement Period
                                                                                  From June  01, 2022
                                                                                  To  June  30, 2022
                                                                                  Page  1 of  2

                                                                                  PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP 181
                                                                                  565 FIFTH AVENUE
                                                                                  NEW YORK, NY 10017

                  BRIDGE PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL  8-181
                  ESCROW DISSOLUTION ACCOUNT
                  715 OCEAN TER
                  STATEN ISLAND NY  10301
                                                                            See Back for Important Information

                                                                         Primary Account: 

                   THE BANK HAS UPDATED ITS FEES AND SERVICE CHARGES INTO A COMBINED SCHEDULE
                   OF FEES AND SERVICE CHARGES FOR BUSINESS ACCOUNTS ("SCHEDULE").

                   THE SCHEDULE WILL GOVERN YOUR USE OF YOUR BANK ACCOUNT(S), ALONG WITH
                   BANKING PRODUCTS AND SERVICES. THE SCHEDULE REPLACES ALL PRIOR FEE
                   ARRANGEMENTS AND SCHEDULES IN EFFECT PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 1, 2022 WHEN THIS
                   SCHEDULE BECOMES EFFECTIVE.

                   TO REVIEW THE UPDATED SCHEDULE, PLEASE VISIT SIGNATURE'S INTERNET BANKING
                   SITE, CONTACT YOUR PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP OR VISIT A BANK FINANCIAL CENTER.

     Signature Relationship Summary  Opening Bal.  Closing Bal.

     BANK DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS
      MONOGRAM INSURED MMA  75,404.01  75,419.92

                               RELATIONSHIP TOTAL  75,419.92 

         0



                                                                                     Statement Period
                                                                                  From June  01, 2022
                                                                                  To  June  30, 2022
                                                                                  Page  2 of  2

                                                                                  PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP 181
                                                                                  565 FIFTH AVENUE
                                                                                  NEW YORK, NY 10017

                  BRIDGE PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL  8-181
                  ESCROW DISSOLUTION ACCOUNT
                  715 OCEAN TER
                  STATEN ISLAND NY  10301
                                                                            See Back for Important Information

                                                                         Primary Account: 

     MONOGRAM INSURED MMA  1503481479

     Summary

      Previous Balance as of June  01, 2022  75,404.01
             1 Credits  15.91
      Ending Balance as of  June  30, 2022  75,419.92

     Deposits and Other Credits
      Jun 30  Interest Paid  15.91

     Daily Balances
      May 31  75,404.01  Jun 30  75,419.92

     *=======================================  Interest Summary  ===========================================*
     *  Year-To-Date Interest  91.07  *
     *  Interest Paid This Period  15.91  Annual Percentage Yield Earned  0.26 %  *
     *  Avg. Balance this Period  75,404.01  Days in Period  30  *
     *=======================================================================================================* 
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